

# **Gplus Adapter 7.5**

# **Gplus Adapter for Siebel CRM**

# **User's Guide**



# The information contained herein is proprietary and confidential and cannot be disclosed or duplicated without the prior written consent of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc.

Copyright © 2001–2007 Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All rights reserved.

#### **About Genesys**

Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc., a subsidiary of Alcatel-Lucent, is 100% focused on software for call centers. Genesys recognizes that better interactions drive better business and build company reputations. Customer service solutions from Genesys deliver on this promise for Global 2000 enterprises, government organizations, and telecommunications service providers across 80 countries, directing more than 100 million customer interactions every day. Sophisticated routing and reporting across voice, e-mail, and Web channels ensure that customers are quickly connected to the best available resource—the first time. Genesys offers solutions for customer service, help desks, order desks, collections, outbound telesales and service, and workforce management. Visit <a href="https://www.genesyslab.com">www.genesyslab.com</a> for more information.

Each product has its own documentation for online viewing at the Genesys Technical Support website or on the Documentation Library DVD, which is available from Genesys upon request. For more information, contact your sales representative.

#### Notice

Although reasonable effort is made to ensure that the information in this document is complete and accurate at the time of release, Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc., cannot assume responsibility for any existing errors. Changes and/or corrections to the information contained in this document may be incorporated in future versions.

#### Your Responsibility for Your System's Security

You are responsible for the security of your system. Product administration to prevent unauthorized use is your responsibility. Your system administrator should read all documents provided with this product to fully understand the features available that reduce your risk of incurring charges for unlicensed use of Genesys products.

#### Trademarks

Genesys, the Genesys logo, and T-Server are registered trademarks of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All other trademarks and trade names referred to in this document are the property of other companies. The Crystal monospace font is used by permission of Software Renovation Corporation, www.SoftwareRenovation.com.

#### **Technical Support from VARs**

If you have purchased support from a value-added reseller (VAR), please contact the VAR for technical support.

#### **Technical Support from Genesys**

If you have purchased support directly from Genesys, please contact Genesys Technical Support at the following regional numbers:

Region	Telephone	E-Mail
North and Latin America	+888-369-5555 or +506-674-6767	<u>support@genesyslab.com</u>
Europe, Middle East, and Africa	+44-(0)-118-974-7002	<u>support@genesyslab.co.uk</u>
Asia Pacific	+61-7-3368-6868	<u>support@genesyslab.com.au</u>
Japan	+81-3-5649-6871	<u>support@genesyslab.co.jp</u>

Prior to contacting technical support, please refer to the *Genesys Technical Support Guide* for complete contact information and procedures.

#### **Ordering and Licensing Information**

Complete information on ordering and licensing Genesys products can be found in the Genesys 7 Licensing Guide.

#### **Released by**

Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. <u>www.genesyslab.com</u> **Document Version:** 75gp\_us\_slcrm\_08-2007\_v7.5.001.00



# **Table of Contents**

Preface		7
	Intended Audience	8
	Chapter Summaries	8
	Document Conventions	9
	Related Resources	11
	Making Comments on This Document	12
Chapter 1	Introduction	13
	New in This Release (7.5)	
	Gplus Communication Server for Siebel CRM	
	Gplus UCS Gateway for Siebel CRM	
	Genesys G7 Multimedia	14
	Gplus Media Routing	14
	Voice	14
	Campaign Synchronization	15
	Integrated Solution Functionality	15
Chapter 2	Overview	17
	Siebel and Genesys Computer Telephony Integration (CTI) About the Siebel Call Center	
	About G <i>plus</i> Adapter Components	19
	The Communications (CTI) Toolbar and Controls	
	Siebel Toolbar Communication Commands	
	Siebel Activities	
	Voice Component Features	
	Basic Voice Feature	
	Outbound Campaign Feature	24
	Universal Callback Feature	
	Expert Contact Feature	
	Media Routing	
	Media Routing Multimedia Component	
	•	27 27

	Configuration Synchronization	30
	Campaign Synchronization	30
	Features	
Chapter 3	Agent Information	37
	Logging Into the Siebel Server	
	Notification of Interactions	39
	Making Yourself Ready or Not Ready	
	Make Ready/Not Ready Controls	
	Making Yourself Ready to Use Media Making Yourself Not Ready	
	The Voice Component	
	The Basic Voice Feature	
	The Outbound Campaign Feature	
	Universal Callback Feature	
	Expert Contact Feature	
	Multimedia Component	
	Controlling Agent Status	
	Working with Genesys E-mail	
	Using Workbins	
	Working with Chat	
	Transferring Genesys E-Mail and Chat Interactions	
	Working with Multiple Interactions Using Genesys Standard	
	Response Library	71
	Media Routing Component	
	Desktop Controls for Processing Siebel eMail	
	Working with E-Mail	
	Working with Background E-Mail	
	Logging Out	
	Automatic Log Out in Predictive Dialing Mode	
	In Case of Unsuccessful Log Out	
Chapter 4	Administrator's Information	81
	Features for Administrators	81
	Logging In	
	Accessing Communications Administration Functions	
	Creating a Genesys Configuration	
	Adding Agents to a Profile	
	Editing Agent Information	
	Configuring the Not Ready Command	
	Synchronizing Siebel Extensions and ACD Queues with Genesys	
	Configuration	

	The Siebel Extensions and ACD Queues Export/Synchronization Rule	
	Synchronizing a Siebel Employee/Agent with Genesys Configura Environment.	ition
	Configuration Synchronization Enhancement	98
	Setting Default Field Values for Designated Genesys Objects	98
	Genesys Agent's Employee ID Mapping	100
	Changing the Default Mapping	100
	E-Mail Routing	101
	Synchronization of E-mail Content Between Genesys Universal Contact Server and Siebel	102
	Genesys E-Mail Activity Creation	102
	Genesys Chat Activity Creation	103
	Configuring a Chat Transcript	104
	Starting the Configuration Synchronization Component	105
	Starting the Campaign Synchronization Component	107
	Exporting Siebel Campaigns to Genesys	
	Deleting Siebel Campaigns from Genesys	114
	Time Zones	
	Calling List Management	114
	Regular and Compatibility Modes	115
	Differences Between the Modes	115
	Regular Mode	119
	Compatibility Mode	124
	Mapping Calling Lists	134
Chapter 5	Troubleshooting	137
	Overview	137
Index		141

Table of Contents



# Preface

Welcome to the *G*plus *Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM User's Guide*. The primary purpose of this guide is to familiarize readers with what the *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM makes possible in your contact center environment. Different types of information are presented for different types of users:

- Architecture, design, and technical information is presented for system integrators.
- Desktop interfaces for each media type are included for agents.
- Administration interfaces show agent and telephony configuration using Siebel administration screens.

The *Gplus* Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM is a software solution that provides seamless integration between Siebel CRM and Genesys 7 solutions. This combination brings together Siebel's leading software applications and Genesys' contact center solutions.

The *Gplus* Adapter provides a single point of access to contact information. The Adapter brings together multiple media and channels, and provides access to the power of Siebel software, promoting better contact relationships overall.

More information about the *Gplus* Adapter's system requirements, installation, and configuration is provided in the *Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide*.

**Note:** This document is valid only for Genesys Release 7.5 of the G*plus* Adapter product. To see documents created for other releases of this product, please visit the Genesys Technical Support website, or request the Documentation Library CD, which you can order by e-mail from Genesys Order Management at <u>orderman@genesyslab.com</u>.

This chapter includes the following sections:

- Intended Audience, page 8
- Chapter Summaries, page 8
- Document Conventions, page 9
- Related Resources, page 11
- Making Comments on This Document, page 12

# **Intended Audience**

This guide targets these types of users:

- System integrators implementing the G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM software in a contact center environment.
- Supervisors and agents using the integrated applications for customer interaction management, resource management, and outbound campaigns.
- Supervisors and managers who wish to manage call lists and outbound campaigns.

This guide may also be helpful to:

- Customers who have purchased G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM and want to become familiar with the delivered solution.
- Genesys Partners and value-added resellers.
- Customers using *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM for contact center pilot projects.
- Large enterprise customers where G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM is used on a divisional or departmental basis.

# **Chapter Summaries**

To help you locate information, the guide begins with a Table of Contents and ends with an Index. The guide contains the following chapters in addition to this Preface:

- Chapter 1, "Introduction," on page 13, defines *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM, lists the required and recommended Genesys and Siebel components, summarizes the Siebel Call Center application, and lists the integrated solution functionality and customer benefits.
- Chapter 2, "Overview," on page 17, describes the integrated solution, presents an architecture overview, shows the unified login and integrated desktops, discusses e-mail route and Siebel Communication Commands, and summarizes real-time configuration synchronization.
- Chapter 3, "Agent Information," on page 37, contains diagrams and flows for those people implementing the *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM software in a contact center environment.
- Chapter 4, "Administrator's Information," on page 81, describes how to perform agent and telephony configuration through Siebel administration screens.
- Chapter 5, "Troubleshooting," on page 137, provides solutions to some common problems.

# **Document Conventions**

This guide uses the following document conventions:

### Words and Terminology

Throughout this document, the Voice, Multimedia, and Media Routing components of the *Gplus* Adapter are categorized as "driver-based components," whereas the Configuration Synchronization, Campaign Synchronization, Communication Server, and UCS Gateway components of the *Gplus* Adapter are called "server-based components."

### **Document Version Number**

A version number appears at the bottom of the inside front cover of this document. Version numbers change as new information is added to this document. Here is a sample version number:

75gp\_us\_slcrm\_08-2007\_v7.5.001.00

You will need this number when you are talking with Genesys Technical Support about this product.

### **Type Styles**

#### Italic

In this document, italic is used for the titles of documents, when a term is being defined, for emphasis, and for mathematical variables.

#### **Examples** • Please consult the *Genesys 7 Migration Guide* for more information.

- *A customary and usual practice* is one that is widely accepted and used within a particular industry or profession.
- Do *not* use this value for this option.
- The formula, x + 1 = 7 where x stands for . . .

#### **Monospace Font**

A monospace font, which is shown in the following examples, is used for:

• All programming identifiers and GUI elements. This convention includes the *names* of directories, files, folders, configuration objects, paths, scripts, dialog boxes, options, fields, text and list boxes, operational modes, all buttons including radio buttons, check boxes, commands, tabs, CTI events, and error messages; the values of options; logical arguments and command syntax; and code samples.

Examples	<ul> <li>Select the Show variables on screen check box.</li> <li>Click the Summation button.</li> <li>In the Properties dialog box, enter the value for the host server in your environment.</li> <li>In the Operand text box, enter your formula.</li> <li>Click OK to exit the Properties dialog box.</li> <li>The following table presents the complete set of error messages T-Server<sup>®</sup> distributes in EventError events.</li> <li>If you select true for the inbound-bsns-calls option, all established</li> </ul>
	inbound calls on a local agent are considered business calls.

• For any text the user must manually enter during a configuration or installation procedure:

#### **Example** • Enter exit at the command line.

# Information About Screen Captures Used in This Document

Screen captures taken from the product GUI (graphical user interface) and used in this document may contain minor errors in spelling, capitalization, or grammar. The text accompanying and explaining the screen captures corrects such errors *except* when such a correction would prevent you from installing, configuring, or successfully using the product. For example, if an option in the Siebel user interface contains a spelling error, then this document may use the name exactly as it appears in that Siebel user interface; such errors are not necessarily corrected in any accompanying text.

### **Use of Square Brackets**

In any logical arguments, commands, and programming syntax presented in this document, square brackets are used to indicate that a particular parametric value is optional. That is, the value is not required to resolve a command, argument, or programming syntax. The customer/user decides whether to supply a value and what that value is. Here is a sample:

smcp\_server -host [/flags]s

### **Use of Angle Brackets**

Angle brackets are used to indicate that a value in a logical argument, command, or programming syntax is required, but that the user must supply the data for the value. Because the value is specific to an individual enterprise—for example, DNs or port numbers—the program cannot predict (that is, program in) what the value is. Here is a sample: smcp\_server -host <confighost>

## **Related Resources**

For information about G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM not covered in this guide, consult these documents:

- *G*plus *Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide*. Lists system requirements and describes how to install and configure *Gplus* Adapter.
- Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Developer's Guide. Describes the API (application programming interface) which you can customize the export of campaigns, campaign contacts, and Do Not Call requests from Siebel to Genesys software. Also describes APIs by which you can customize the integration of e-mail and multimedia activities between Siebel and Genesys software.
- The Release Notes and Product Advisory for this product and associated products, are available on the Genesys Technical Support website at <a href="http://genesyslab.com/support">http://genesyslab.com/support</a>.
- The *Genesys Technical Publications Glossary*, which ships on the Genesys Documentation Library CD. Provides a fairly comprehensive list of Genesys and CTI terminology and acronyms in this document.
- The *Genesys Migration Guide*, also on the Genesys Documentation Library CD, which contains a documented migration strategy for each software release. Please refer to the applicable portion or contact Genesys Technical Support for additional information.

Information on supported hardware and third-party software is available on the Genesys Technical Support website in the following documents:

- Genesys Supported Operating Systems and Databases
- Genesys Supported Media Interfaces

Genesys product documentation is available on the:

- Genesys Technical Support website at http://genesyslab.com/support.
- Genesys Documentation Library CD, which you can order by e-mail from Genesys Order Management at orderman@genesyslab.com.

# **Making Comments on This Document**

If you especially like or dislike anything about this document, please feel free to e-mail your comments to Techpubs.webadmin@genesyslab.com.

You can comment on what you regard as specific errors or omissions, and on the accuracy, organization, subject matter, or completeness of this document. Please limit your comments to the information in this document only and to the way in which the information is presented. Speak to Genesys Technical Support if you have suggestions about the product itself.

When you send us comments, you grant Genesys a nonexclusive right to use or distribute your comments in any way it believes appropriate, without incurring any obligation to you.



Chapter

# Introduction

This chapter introduces the G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM and discusses the following topics:

- New in This Release (7.5), page 13
- Integrated Solution Functionality, page 15

# New in This Release (7.5)

In this 7.5 release of the *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM, several enhancements have been implemented.

Overall, the Adapter now supports Siebel 8.0, the latest CRM application suite offering from Oracle on the road to Fusion. The Siebel CRM Adapter 7.5 supports Siebel 8.0 on all components across multiple platforms.

As a part of the Genesys 7.5 release, this Adapter offers new features of Genesys 7.5, such as secured connections between Genesys servers and filter application logs for sensitive information. Genesys highly recommends learning about new Genesys 7.5 features from the relevant 7.5 release documentation.

In addition, please refer to the following new component-specific features:

## **Gplus** Communication Server for Siebel CRM

• Offers secured connection between the *Gplus* Communication Driver and the *Gplus* Communication Server.

## **Gplus UCS Gateway for Siebel CRM**

• Allows the option to start the *Gplus* UCS Gateway using Windows services.

## **Genesys G7 Multimedia**

- Chat Transfer
  - Transfer of chat interactions
  - User interface enhancement to support transferring of chat interactions
- Chat Spell Checking
  - Allows agents to perform spell checking on chat responses
- Chat Transcript Sort
  - Chat responses are displayed with the most recent on the bottom of the transcript.

## **Gplus Media Routing**

- Work Item Transfer
  - User interface enhancement to support transfer of Siebel work items to other agents or queues
- Pull of Work Item from Queue
  - Ability for the agent/supervisors to pull a work item from a queue while it is waiting to be routed
- Cancel or Stop Route Request
  - Ability for the agent/supervisors to cancel or stop a work item from being routed while it is waiting in queue
- Route Requests with Gplus Communication Server
  - Now uses the Siebel HTTP subsystem to deliver route requests to the *Gplus* Communication Server

### Voice

- Automatic Network Reconnect
  - In two steps network transfer scenario where the second agent is not available to accept the call, the agent performing the transfer will automatically reconnect with the customer upon expiration of the time out period
- Multiple Active Outbound Campaigns
  - Supports Genesys Outbound ability to allow agent to be involved in multiple active call campaigns at the same time
- T-Server Connection
  - Supports new description of connection to the T-Server
  - Supports secure connection between the Adapter and T-Server
- Filtering of Sensitive Information
  - Supports filtering of sensitive information in UserData, Extensions, and Reasons when writing to application logs

## **Campaign Synchronization**

- Added flexibility to the customization procedure of synchronization data:
  - Possibility to add custom fields with new data types: "float" and "datetime"
  - Possibility to export different field values per record in the same chain depending on the phone type (contact\_info\_type)
  - Possibility to synchronize custom fields from the Campaign List Contact view
  - Possibility to develop customer's own synchronization procedure based on XML schema, which describes all messages supported by the Campaign Synchronization Component.

For more information about the new functionality mentioned above, see the *G*plus *Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Developer's Guide*.

• The Campaign Synchronization Component now supports secure communication with Genesys servers.

# **Integrated Solution Functionality**

The integrated Siebel CRM/Genesys 7 solution delivers the following functionality:

• Enterprise-wide routing over a multi-site, multi-switch contact center environment, connecting callers to the most knowledgeable agent, regardless of agent location, based on customer segmentation, business rules, or service level agreements:

The Genesys Framework and G*plus* Adapter can support Siebel deployments on more switching platforms than any other CTI vendor.

Genesys Framework supports multisite and global, multicarrier deployments.

Genesys has out-of-the-box, validated CTI for major ACD, PBX and IVR products and major operating system platforms and databases.

• High scalability and high availability:

Supports a high volume of concurrent Siebel CRM users.

- Supports back-up and fail-over servers on Windows, Solaris, and AIX.
- Integration with Siebel Call Center, made possible by the G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM:

Provides a common baseline for reporting on interactions.

Supports simultaneous interaction management by agents.

• Integration with Siebel eMarketing applications:

Blended inbound and outbound contact management for efficient campaign management.

Proactive customer contact, such as notifications or new information, to improve customer satisfaction.

• Maximization of agent desktop:

Intelligent queuing and routing of customer interactions across all media channels, multiple sites and switching platforms to a unified agent desktop, based on enterprise business rules.

Single view of the customer across the enterprise with a complete interaction history within Siebel eBusiness applications.

- Ability to develop and manage the workforce in real time and ensure proper support levels.
- Enhanced customer intelligence and reporting with a single comprehensive view of all customer interactions collected in enterprise-wide eBusiness applications.
- Easy administration:

Real-time synchronization of agent profile, and other configuration details between Genesys and Siebel Call Center, minimizes workforce scheduling conflicts by reducing inconsistencies in agent profiles and ensures every customer interaction is managed effectively, regardless of the time of day or customer demand.

• Integrated Joint Customer Support System:

Siebel Systems and Genesys have implemented a joint support agreement that enables our technical support organizations to efficiently respond to customer Service Requests.

All service requests are tracked by both organizations to ensure resolution and customer satisfaction.

Ongoing solution support by Siebel Systems and Genesys that saves customers time and money as new releases are deployed.



Chapter



# **Overview**

This chapter briefly explains how the *Gplus* Adapter integrates Genesys and Siebel systems. It comments on, and explains the possible differences between different sites where the *Gplus* Adapter is deployed. It then provides an introduction to each of the *Gplus* Adapter components.

This chapter is divided into the following sections:

- Siebel and Genesys Computer Telephony Integration (CTI), page 17
- About Gplus Adapter Components, page 19
- The Communications (CTI) Toolbar and Controls, page 20
- Siebel Activities, page 21
- Voice Component Features, page 22
- Media Routing, page 26
- Multimedia Component, page 27
- Configuration Synchronization, page 30
- Campaign Synchronization, page 30

In summary, this chapter introduces the *Gplus* Adapter, its context, its components, and its features. It emphasizes that you use the Genesys CTI controls embedded in the Siebel Communications toolbar to make use of the *Gplus* Adapter features.

# Siebel and Genesys Computer Telephony Integration (CTI)

The *Gplus* Adapter serves as the intermediary between the Siebel system and the Genesys system, effectively providing a required data and control functions conversion between the Siebel servers and the Genesys servers. As a general rule, the Siebel client application communicates with the Siebel servers, and the *Gplus* Adapter communicates with the Genesys Framework servers,

including the T-Server, but the G*plus* Adapter also enables information transfer between the two systems.

To perform the functions mentioned above, the *Gplus* Adapter must be fully integrated into the Siebel Call Center application.

Installing the *Gplus* Adapter effectively modifies the Siebel Call Center user interface by adding specific CTI controls. Most of the *Gplus* Adapter features and functionality are accessible through the controls that appear in a modified version of the Siebel Communications Toolbar, which is part of the Siebel Call Center application.

Be aware that your desktop may not include all of the CTI controls described in this document. The CTI controls that appears on your desktop reflect the particular selection of G*plus* Adapter components and features that are installed at your site and available on your desktop.

**Note:** It is possible to access *Gplus* Adapter control functions other than through the Toolbar. You can use the Siebel Communication Commands menu (View > Communications) to navigate to some feature controls. You can also configure hot keys, assigning them to frequently used Communications Commands. Finally, you can right-click to obtain context-sensitive commands through local applet menus. However, the Toolbar provides the most obvious representation of the Adapter's CTI controls.

When the *Gplus* Adapter is fully integrated into the Siebel Call Center, the resulting contact center functionality includes additional Genesys capabilities and services that extend and enhance the Siebel Call Center functionality.

### About the Siebel Call Center

The Siebel Call Center provides comprehensive customer service, support, telesales, and telemarketing capabilities to a contact center organization. Using Siebel CRM Call Center, agents can quickly identify customers, enter and track service issues, access a knowledge base, run marketing campaigns, manage sales opportunities and even post solutions on the web, using a single desktop user interface.

The Siebel Call Center features a zero-footprint, highly interactive web client that requires no software installation and runs directly inside a web browser. The Siebel web client utilizes patent-pending technology to optimize the agent experience and provide high levels of interactivity including partial page refreshes, enabled keyboards, and support for push technology for inbound screen pops.

In addition, the Siebel Call Center includes global time-zone support to allow regionally distributed contact centers to leverage a "Follow the Sun" support model.

# About Gplus Adapter Components

Genesys CTI controls are embedded in the Siebel Communications toolbar, which is part of the Siebel Call Center application.

The *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM provides different toolbar buttons and controls depending on the selection of Genesys components and features that are deployed at a site. This is why the selection of buttons and controls available on your desktop may be slightly different than what you see illustrated in this document.

The rest of this chapter provides general information about the components and features that comprise the Gplus Adapter.

**Note:** Chapter 3, "Agent Information," on page 37 provides specific information about using the controls and functionality associated with each component and feature. Information is listed under separate headings for each component.

The *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM includes the following components and related features:

- Voice Component, which provides basic voice (inbound and outbound voice) processing through Genesys Framework, and offers integration with other Genesys solutions to provide the following features:
  - Outbound Campaign feature (provides Outbound Contact and Campaign functionality)
  - Universal Callback (Voice and Web) feature
  - Expert Contact
- Media Routing Component (provides Siebel eMail functionality)
- Multimedia Component
  - Genesys E-mail feature (provides Genesys E-mail functionality)
  - Chat feature (provides access to chat functionality)
- Configuration Synchronization Component (provides the capability to transfer and synchronize certain elements of Siebel information, such as person/agent data, to the Genesys configuration environment.
- Campaign Synchronization Component (automates the synchronization of campaigns and associated contact lists)

An overview of each of the preceding topics is provided in this chapter.

# The Communications (CTI) Toolbar and Controls

This section introduces the Communications CTI Toolbar and controls. As a rule, it is easier to learn what the various icons on your toolbar mean by using your mouse to position the cursor over them, one at a time. A moment after your cursor lands on a toolbar button icon or control, a small text box appears, explaining the purpose of that control.

In general, CTI toolbar buttons and controls can be divided into the following categories:

- Session control
- Basic interaction control
- Multimedia

Interactions control buttons with additional support for:

- Outbound Campaign
- Universal Callback
- Expert Contact

## **Siebel Toolbar Communication Commands**

Siebel Communications Commands can be accessed in the following ways:

- The Communications toolbar with its dynamic reflection of work item states.
- Configurable hot keys, which you can assign to frequently used Communications commands.
- The right mouse button for context-sensitive commands in the local applet menu.
- The View > Communications menu on the main toolbar (see Figure 1).



File Edit Yew	Favorites Icols	Pelb					
3 Back + 🕥 - 1	🖻 🗈 🐔 🔎 Se	arch 📩 Favorites	0 6. B E	ł			
ddress 🗟 http://g	gpvm4/callcenter_enu/	lstart.swe?SWECmd=L	ogin8SWEPL=18SWE	TS=1184703754718			
File Edit View	Navigate Query T	cols Help					
BRO .	×   # 3	Advanced Sort	[ctrl+shift+0]				Saved Qu
	00:00:00	Auto Expense Report Auto Timesheet	t	≤ 脂多 ● [			
201100	Accounts 8	Communications User Preferences	*	Reset Active Session Count MakeChatWorkDemActive Update Dashboard	[Ctrl+F8] [Ctrl+Shfb+#]	Administra	ation - Product
				Associaté	[F8]		
My Homepa My Activities		me Back Fg75_o1	Lg75_o1. Toda	Associate Bind Transfer	Charles and the second	- ×	My Calendar 🚺 Date: Jul 💌 1
		me Back Fg75_01 Description	Lg75_o1. Toda Priority	Associate Und Transfer Conference Transfer Consultative Transfer Release Cell View Work Rem	[F8] [Alt+17] [Ctr1+F7] [Snit+F7] [F12] [Shift+F8]	-	Date: Jul 💌 1
My Activities		Description	Priority	Associate Conference Transfer Consultative Transfer Release Call View Work Item Accept Work Item	[F6] (AR+F7) [Ctrl+F7] [Shft+F7] [F12]	-	1
My Activities New	Туре	Description Record(1107) ph	Priority	Associate Und Transfer Conference Transfer Consultative Transfer Release Cell View Work Rem	[F8] [Alt+17] [Ctr1+F7] [Snit+F7] [F12] [Shift+F8]	-	Date: Jul 💌 1 Tuesday 7/17/20
My Activities New	Type Call - Outbourd	Description Record(1107) ph Record(1111) ph	Priority Ione	Associate Gonference Transfer Consultative Transfer Release Call View Work Rem Accept Work Rem Initiate Work Rem Log In Ready	[F8] [Alt+17] [Ctr1+F7] [Snit+F7] [F12] [Shift+F8]	-	Date: Jul 💌 1
My Activities New	Type Call - Outbourd Call - Outbourd	Description Record(1107) ph Record(1111) ph Record(1187) ph	Priority Ione Ione	Associate Gonference Transfer Consultative Transfer Release Call Vew Work Rem Accept Work Rem Initiate Work Rem Log In Ready Not Ready	[F8] [Alt+17] [Ctr1+F7] [Snit+F7] [F12] [Shift+F8]	-	Date: Jul 💌 1 Tuesday 7/17/20
My Activities New	Type Cal - Outboun: Cal - Outboun: Cal - Outboun:	Description Record(1107) ph Record(1111) ph Record(1187) ph Record(1187) ph Record(1115) ph	Priority Ione Ione Ione	Associate Gonference Transfer Consultative Transfer Release Call View Work Rem Accept Work Rem Initiate Work Rem Log In Ready	[F8] [Alt+17] [Ctr1+F7] [Snit+F7] [F12] [Shift+F8]		Date: Jul 💌 1 Tuesday 7/17/20 09:00 AM
My Activities New	Call - Outbound Call - Outbound Call - Outbound Call - Outbound Call - Outbound	Description Record(1107) ph Record(1111) ph Record(1107) ph Record(1107) ph Record(1115) ph Record(1139) ph	Priority Ione Ione Ione Ione	Associate Eind Francter Conference Transfer Consultative Transfer Release Call Vew Work Dem Accept Work Item Initiate Work Item Log In Ready Not Ready Log Out	[F8] [Alt+F7] [Curl+F7] [Suft+F7] [F12] [Suft+F8]		Date: Jul 💌 1 Tuesday 7/17/20 09:00 AM

Figure 1: Communication Commands from the View Menu

**Note:** There are two View buttons: one is in the browser (grey, on the top) and second is in Siebel (blue, inside browser window). An agent clicks the Siebel View menu button.

# **Siebel Activities**

Siebel Activities are created when a direct call is made from, or answered on, an agent's desktop; or when either a call or a preview interaction is delivered or originated by a supported Genesys solution such as Routing, Universal Callback, Outbound Contact, Genesys Chat, or Genesys E-mail. An Activity record is not created for internal calls. Activity records are updated dynamically based on an agent's action.

# **Voice Component Features**

The Voice Component includes Basic Voice, Outbound Campaign, Universal Callback, and Expert Contact features. The Voice Component provides the following features:

- Basic Voice (voice calls originated or answered by a contact center agent)
- Outbound campaign (outbound campaign preview interactions and calls)
- Universal Callback (voice and web callback requests and calls automatically dialed by Universal Callback Server)
- Expert Contact.

## **Basic Voice Feature**

The Basic Voice feature is intended for contact centers that primarily work with inbound calls.

Figure 2 shows the Siebel Call Center with the Adapter after the agent logs in, and before a call is received.

200	a bitter line and		th Fevorites		WETS-1184703754718				-
	Edt Ven Ning	and the second second second	and the second se	igence more - tab	HE13-110-100-100				0
			and the second se					Saved Quertes: Default	0
0									
2.0	B DE DO MA		5, 4, 4	同新型教	売 方 章		± 1 31 + 4		自用意义
ine: Hi		unts 🔂 Con	tacts 🧤 Oppe	irtunities 🛒	Sales Orders 9 Service 6 0	uotes 🖆 Administration - Product			
	Homepage	Web	ome Back En75	otio75 ot	Today is Tuesday, July 17, 2007.		and and the		
.4	a some proje		and marking a	ar egi a jun	rough the substant and art and a		My Calondar	Contract and	
thy	Activities	D-D-C	and the second se		10150-2	- ×	Date: 34 -	17 + 2007 + Ga	
		Type	Description	Priority	Activity		Tuesday 7/17/2	907	New
>	-	Call - Dutbound	Record(1107) phy Record(1111) phy			1			
ł		Cal-Outcord	Record(1111)ph	2211			19:00 AM		
t		Cal-Cuttouril	Record[1115)ph				10:00 4/1		
t		Cal-Duttound	Record 11390 ph	()			HELIO API		
+	-	Call - Outbound	Record(1163) phy	one			11:00 AM		
		Call - Outbound	Record(1211) ph	ani		-	and the second second		
+							12:00 PH		
							DLUD PH		
t							01.00 179		
t							02:00 714		
t							02:00 791		
							02:00 PM		
							02:00 PH		

Figure 2: Siebel Call Center After Login but Before Call Received

When a call arrives, the phone rings, a screen pop appears, if configured, and the *Gplus* icon blinks on the agent desktop (see Figure 3 on page 23).

lebel Call Center - Wicrosoft Internet Explorer		
Edit gen Fignantes Iaola Hela		
aest • 🗊 🔄 📓 🚳 🔎 Sesue 🙀 Favorites 🚱 📂 🌭 🖂 🔜 🍪		
10 🜒 http://wigp782/calcenter_enu/start.am/20/8Ccnd=Logn858/829L=1858/8275=1184709-88128		💌 🛃 Go 🛛 Les
Enit Vew Navigale Query Tools High Inboard Call from 1308		ORACL
Re A B 2 2 B 2	Savend Quertes: Cofault	- q
	日日にあったいたいない	0
llome 🚰 Accounts 🙀 Contacts 🎼 Opportunities 🌹 Sales Orders 🤱 Service 📓 Quites 💰 Administration -	Product	
		6dt Layout
ty Homepage Welcome Back ag2202g3 ag2202g3. Today is Tuesday, July 17, 2007.	My Calendar 1 7 30	- x
N Activities	X Dete: 34 + 17 + 2007 + 0	
1 Annual		
	Tuesday 7/17/2007	New 1 4 4
	PRDG APT	
	Contraction of the local division of the loc	
	10:00 AH	
	11:00 AH	
	12/00 (9)	
	113:00 (994	
	02:00 (***	
	the second	
	113:00 PPT	
	04:00 011	
	115:00 299	
	05:00 999	

Figure 3: Siebel Call Center, Call Arrived

To answer the call, the agent clicks the blinking icon. This starts the interaction and enables the applicable embedded Genesys voice controls (see Figure 4 on page 24).

And in 1976	3 10 4	Help .	-	AR							
Bask + 🔘 🔤											
reits 💼 http://edgp762		A THE OWNER AND A THE OWNER AND A	nd=Logn35WBPL=18	ds//ef5=118470915813	78						👻 🛃 Go Lea
e Esit Vew Nevigab											ORACL
		CITY CONTRACTOR							aved Quertes:	-	• 4
🖪 🛄 🕒 00.02.0	53	121	中, 11日日	四张密始 0	Hinbound Call from 130		300	1/1 40	南川県	1018	
Home Account					Service Dutes	Administrat	tios - Product				
100 2 M 2 M 2 M 2	/										Na Rautech 🛛 🕞
the second s	Meru +	Nex	Query								And the second se
and the subscription of th	Menu •	Nen Pir/He	Query Account	Work Phone #	Personal Address City	Sa	ite	Postal Code	trual	Contact He	And the second se
the second s	objeta program al al se	and the second second	A REPORT OF A R	Work Phone #	Personal Address City	564	ste	Postal Code	Inul	Contact He	And the second se
Last Name 🤉	init Name	and the second second	A REPORT OF A R	Work Phone #	Personal Address City	584	ste	Postal Code	Enal		And the second se
Last Name 2 Pr	objeta program al al se	and the second second	Account	Work Phone #				Poetal Code	Inal		thod
Last Name 2 Pr	init Name	and the second second	Account Work #:	Work Phone #	Acourt	94a 20	ste Siz	Postal Code			thod
Last Name 2 Pr Nenu * New Last Pare:* Frst Name:*	init Name	and the second second	Account Wark #: Nan Fax #i	Work Phone #	Account: Addrese		512				thod
Last Name 2 Pr	init Name	76/11a	Account Work #:	Work Phone #	Acourt						thod

Figure 4: Siebel Call Center, Agent on Call

## **Outbound Campaign Feature**

The Outbound Campaign feature is intended for contact centers that work with Outbound calls. It supports Genesys Outbound Desktop Protocol. The Outbound Campaign feature provides integration of Siebel CRM with the Genesys Outbound Contact 7 system. It functions within the context of the Voice Component and implements the Outbound Contact desktop functionality to facilitate outbound campaign activities.

Each incoming OCS interaction (for example, a Preview record or an outbound phone call) initiates a Campaign Overview screen pop in the Siebel desktop application.

Additionally, Campaign status information is displayed on the Persistent Customer Dashboard.

An extension of the current *Gplus* Voice Component enables agents to process outbound calls from OCS.

### **Universal Callback Feature**

The Universal Callback feature is used with the Voice Component to provide Voice and Web Callback functionality. It allows a customer to schedule a call from an agent, and allows the agent or an IVR to help.

For example, with the Universal Callback feature available, a customer speaking with an agent can request that a representative from your company call back at another time. The customer can confirm a phone number and suggest an approximate callback time, and the agent can schedule the call.

Later, at or near the scheduled callback time, the callback information is presented to an agent. Depending on the type of callback supported at your site and the details of the callback request, the Universal Callback system may suggest that a specific agent make the call, or assign the callback task to some group of agents. In the latter case, various options may be available for determining which particular agent processes the callback.

Please refer to the Universal Callback documentation for full details about the capabilities of this feature.

### **Expert Contact Feature**

The Expert Contact feature provides integrated access to functionality of the Genesys Expert Contact solution. In doing so, this feature offers basic CTI functionality to branch office workers, the "experts," who may not have access to traditional PBX/CTI link environment. in this context, an expert is anyone in an enterprise who can provide a contact (such as a customer, partner, or vendor) with the right level of expertise on a given product, service or process.

An expert does not use Genesys software the same way a traditional contact center agent does. The expert's location is also an important criteria. An expert can be located anywhere within the extended enterprise, such as back-office, branch office, or even home office. As a consequence, "high end" CTI/telecommunications infrastructure may not be available to the expert. The service provided by the Expert Contact CTI-Less T-Server fulfills the need.

The Genesys Expert Contact solution can also apply intelligence to the routing and transfer of contact interactions. Interactions are routed according to a company's business criteria to the resource best qualified to handle the customer, regardless of location. Depending upon the implementation, call and data transfer capabilities may enable agents to transfer current caller context data (such as the data collected through an IVR) along with the call to the expert anywhere in the enterprise.

The Expert Contact feature, by providing access to the related Genesys Expert Contact Solution, addresses an organization's needs for enterprise-wide integrated customer care. I

The CTI-less T-Server delivers a crucial part of the Expert Contact functionality. It monitors the expert contact desktop application without any connection to a premise switch. It receives and tracks CTI (link emulation) messages from the expert desktop. It performs many of the same tasks as other (switch based) T-Servers in that it can:

- Send messages to, or receive messages from, other Genesys server components (such as Stat Server)
- Handle data for current interactions
- Coordinates voice and data delivery to the expert's desktop.

# **Media Routing**

The *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM enables you to use Genesys E-mail, Siebel eMail, or both. For information about Genesys E-mail, refer to the e-mail information listed under the "Multimedia Component" section. The following sequence shows the processing of Siebel eMail:

- 1. The Genesys Universal Router queues inbound Siebel eMails:
  - E-mails are received from the corporate e-mail server and processed via Siebel eMail Response workflows.
  - E-mails are passed to Siebel Smart Answer for context analysis and auto response, if appropriate; otherwise e-mail is passed to Genesys for routing.
  - The Genesys Universal Router Business Service attaches the Siebel eMail activity ID and other key data to a component that issues a route request to Genesys Universal Queue.
- **2.** The Genesys Universal Routing Server (URS) pushes the e-mails to Siebel agents via the Siebel Communications Toolbar's e-mail channel.
  - Routing strategies in URS identify a target agent.
  - Interaction Server sends an invitation event to an agent.
  - Siebel delivers the e-mail. The interaction is pushed to the agent via the *Gplus* Adapter.
  - The Siebel Communications toolbar notifies the selected agent that an e-mail has arrived with a flashing icon. See Figure 5.



#### Figure 5: Incoming E-mail Icon

- 3. Siebel eMail Response processes the e-mail.
  - Siebel event handlers use the passed activity ID to look up and pop the appropriate Siebel eMail view for processing the agent's reply processing.
  - Siebel outbound workflow processes send the reply out to the corporate e-mail server when the agent is done.

- **4.** The *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM updates the interaction status in the Genesys environment.
- **Note:** Genesys recommends that you do not sign into two different computers at the same time using the same sign-in password. You should work on and sign into only one computer at a time.

# **Multimedia Component**

The Multimedia component is a driver that provides Genesys E-mail and chat capabilities, switches control among work items, accepts incoming interactions, and controls related elements of the user interface.

This Multimedia Component section provides information under the following headings:

- Genesys E-Mail
- Genesys Chat

### **Genesys E-Mail**

This section explains how the Adapter handles and processes Genesys E-mail in the Siebel Call Center. It introduces the desktop controls for processing email that is handled by the Genesys Multimedia Solution.

#### **Desktop Controls for Processing Genesys E-Mails**

The *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM enables agents to process e-mails from Genesys Multimedia. The e-mail view provided by the Adapter includes e-mail specific controls. Figure 6 on page 28 shows the desktop of an agent working on a reply.

A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL	mi:ROGO/start.swe					
	vigine Query Too	s teb				
10 0 m	H J J S	一曲風				Saved Queri
(4) 00:00:17	1	シャーキー	18 新石石石	F->E-mail from dguise	w.@mtet-009 🔄 🖻 🔎 📥 🛌	山・田・田・山
nesys   🚔 Hom erations   Workite		S Contacts	g Opportunities	Sales Orders 9 5	ervice 📔 Quotes 🕼 Administration - Prod	uct
nbound Email					Outbound Email	
rtenu • Repl	V Repty All Mar	k Done Contacts			Menu +	
From dour	evyo@mcc-ti-009				To:	
Ta shi e	< POG-IS-xhridides				C+:	
Cc.					800	
	ning E-mail sample				Subject:	
Attachmenta: IT	ALCONCERCIPTION OF A				Attachments:	
WISCHSPICE 10						
Hil This is a test m	iessage			2		
ы				-		
Hil This is a test m Have a nice day	yl			-		
Hil This is a test m Have a nice day Suggestions	yl Mnowledge Manas	err Sobound Attachme	ents 🕴 Outbound Attache	al al		
Hil This is a test m Have a nice day Suggestions	yl	distilization of	ents ] Outbound Attache	el el	Active	
Hil This is a test m Have a nice day Suggestions Menu + F	yl   Knowledge Manse Prenden	distilization of	In Alexandra Street Street	el el		
Hil This is a test m Have a nice day Suggestions Menu + F	yl Froskiedze Maner Preven Category Path sebel(cat) sebel(cat)	Description	Attachments	-	Active	

Figure 6: Siebel Call Center for Inbound E-Mail

The desktop interface, shown in Figure 6, uses the following Genesys controls and features:

- Inbound e-mail interaction controls (Reply, ReplyAll, Mark Done [delete]), and toolbar buttons Transfer to Agent, and Transfer to Queue).
- Outbound (reply) e-mail interaction controls (Send, Save&Close, Transfer to Agent, Transfer to Queue, and Delete)
- Knowledge Manager, providing the ability to browse, preview, and apply standard responses from the Genesys Standard Response Library (SRL)

- Suggestions tab, providing the ability to view automatically suggested standard responses and insert them into the reply
- Inbound Attachments view, providing the ability to view attachments of inbound e-mail
- Outbound Attachments view, providing the ability to view and add new attachments to the outbound (reply) e-mail

### **Genesys Chat**

The *Gplus* Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM enables agents to process Genesys Multimedia Routing Solution chats. The agent can use the Genesys Standard Response Library to enter chat responses. Figure 7 shows the agent's desktop view of a chat interaction.



Figure 7: Agent's Chat Screen

# **Configuration Synchronization**

*Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM enables Siebel configuration changes to be dynamically communicated to Genesys via "listener" services in real time. The specific changes are automatically updated in the Genesys Configuration Layer when detected. Figure 8 shows a diagram of the process.



#### Figure 8: Configuration Synchronization

The configuration information is abstracted from physical data structures. There is no direct database call into Siebel or Genesys.

The design philosophy used for this feature is consistent with the following established data access and update methods:

- Siebel EAI
- Genesys Configuration Management APIs
- **Note:** Currently the synchronization is unidirectional, occurring from the Siebel to the Genesys environment.

For more information about the Siebel interface for updating agent and other configuration data, see Chapter 4, "Administrator's Information," on page 81.

# **Campaign Synchronization**

The Campaign Synchronization Component of the *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM provides Siebel users with the ability to export campaigns and campaign-related data from the Siebel to the Genesys environment. For each exported campaign, the component automatically creates a campaign definition in the Genesys Configuration Layer, including Campaign, Calling List, and Table Access objects. In addition, the component creates database tables with calling list records and indexes. The exported information becomes readily available for Genesys Outbound Contact.

When a campaign is exported, the Campaign Synchronization Component automatically copies changes that were made to that campaign in the Siebel environment to the Genesys environment.



Beginning with the 7.2 Release, the component also sends back to Siebel all call results of campaign execution (backward synchronization). In previous releases there was no such functionality.

**Note:** If you export a campaign from Siebel to Genesys and then change its name in the Siebel Call Center, the name of the campaign is not updated in Genesys. In this scenario, use the following workaround: Before changing the name of an exported campaign, delete the Genesys Campaign Export position from the campaign in Siebel. Next, change the campaign name and export the campaign to the Genesys environment by adding the Genesys Campaign Export position to the campaign. Then, manually remove in Genesys Configuration Manager all the objects corresponding to the old campaign name, which are the old campaign object, old calling list object(s), and old table access object(s).

**Note:** In Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0, when the campaign execution option Load Behavior is set to Add to Existing Wave, the component does not support the deletion of a list from a campaign. The component deletes the list and all its contacts from the campaign on the Genesys side, while the contacts of the list still remain in the campaign on the Siebel side.

### **Features**

The Campaign Synchronization component provides the following primary features which are described in upcoming sections:

- Real-time Campaign data synchronization from Siebel to Genesys
- Call results synchronization from Genesys to Siebel in Command and Real-Time modes
- Configuration Manager folder assignment based on Siebel User IDs
- Database Access Point assignment based on Siebel User IDs
- Campaign-mapping mode support for Regular and Compatibility modes
- Open synchronization interface
- Configurable list import
- Warm Standby mode support for Genesys Configuration Server
- Warm Standby mode support for Genesys DB Server
- Update of Genesys Do Not Call field based on either Customer ID or phone numbers
- Warm Standby mode support

### **Real-Time Campaign Data Synchronization**

The real-time data synchronization feature of the Campaign Synchronization Component automatically updates information between Siebel and Genesys applications as changes to campaigns are made in the Siebel environment. The Campaign Synchronization Component supports this feature by default.

### **Call Results Synchronization**

Call results synchronization is possible in two modes:

- Real-time
- Command

#### **Real-Time Mode**

In Real-time mode the Adapter dynamically collects the results of campaign execution from the Outbound Contact Server and sends them as XML messages to Siebel with a time interval which equals the number of milliseconds from the application option pushDataTimeout. To enable call results synchronization in Real-time mode, the application option synchCallResults must be set to true.

#### **Command Mode**

In Command mode the Adapter executes a synchronization procedure just one time for all Siebel campaigns which had been exported to Genesys before this procedure began. The Adapter queries the Outbound Contact Server database for Call Results, which belong to such campaigns, and sends these results back to Siebel (an XML message for each campaign) until all campaigns have been processed. This mode may be helpful for obtaining Call Results from campaigns which were previously exported to Genesys but were not synchronized for Call Results in Real-time mode when these campaigns were executed. To start the Adapter in Command mode you must add the new option ·batch in the Adapter's command line.

# Configuration Manager Folder Assignment Based on Mapped Siebel User IDs

During import of a campaign, Configuration Manager objects of different types related to that campaign are created under Configuration Manager folders according to folder assignments. To achieve this, the Campaign Synchronization Component supports the mapping of Siebel User IDs to Genesys Configuration Manager folders. For more information about the mapping, see the *G*plus *Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide*.

**Note:** To synchronize campaign information using this release of the G*plus* Adapter, you must map the Siebel User IDs (the Login Names) of the *users who created campaigns* in the Siebel environment to the DatabaseAccessPoints, TableAccessFolders, CallingListFolders, and CampaignFolders.

# Database Access Point Assignment Based on Siebel User IDs

The Campaign Synchronization Component enables Siebel users to create calling list tables in different databases. This is achieved through the mapping of Siebel User IDs to Database Access Points in the Genesys Configuration Layer. For more information about the mapping, see the *G*plus *Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide*.

**Note:** To synchronize campaign information using this release of the G*plus* Adapter, you must map the Siebel User IDs (the Login Names) of the *users who created campaigns* in the Siebel environment to the DatabaseAccessPoints, TableAccessFolders, CallingListFolders, and CampaignFolders.

# Regular and Compatibility Campaign Mapping Mode Support

The Campaign Synchronization Component supports both Regular Mode and Compatibility Mode.

#### **Regular Mode**

For any exported Siebel campaign, the Component creates a corresponding Genesys campaign. If the Siebel campaign has Siebel call lists, corresponding Genesys calling lists are associated with the created Genesys campaign.

#### **Compatibility Mode**

For any exported Siebel campaign tree (the top-level Siebel Parent campaign and all its Child campaigns), the Component creates a single Genesys campaign corresponding to the top-level Siebel Parent campaign. All Genesys calling lists created based on Siebel call lists from the top-level Siebel Parent campaign and all its Child campaigns are associated with the created Genesys campaign.

### **Open Synchronization Interface**

The Campaign Synchronization Component exposes its campaign synchronization interface through a Siebel Business Service and XML schema.

The Business Service provides a number of methods to invoke different synchronization functions. Using this interface, you can customize the default campaign-synchronization scenarios provided by the Campaign Synchronization Component or new scenarios can be implemented.

Advanced customers may develop their own synchronization procedure based on XML schema, which describes all messages supported by the Campaign Synchronization Component.

For more information about the open synchronization interface, refer to the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Developer's Guide.

### **Configurable List Import**

You can change the way in which the Campaign Synchronization Component maps Siebel fields to Genesys fields when importing calling list records to the Genesys environment changes by configuring List Import functionality of the Campaign Synchronization Component.

For more information about the Configurable List Import, see the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Developer's Guide.

### Genesys Configuration Server Warm Standby Mode Support

If the Campaign Synchronization Component loses communication with the primary Configuration Server, it tries to connect to the backup Configuration Server. If successful, the Component continues to work with the backup Configuration Server as if it were the primary Configuration Server.

If the component cannot establish communication with the backup Configuration Server (for example, if the backup Configuration Server is not configured or running, or for other reasons), then the Component tries to attempt to reestablish a connection to the primary. Essentially, the Component tries to connect to each server alternately until either connection is established.

The system administrator can configure options for the Configuration Server Warm Standby mode by modifying the Server Info > Backup Server and Server Info > Reconnect Timeout properties of the Configuration Server Application object in the Genesys Configuration Layer.

### Genesys DB Server Warm Standby Mode Support

If the Campaign Synchronization Component cannot connect to the primary DB Server, it tries to connect to the backup DB Server. If successful, the



Component continues to work with the backup DB Server as if it were the primary DB Server.

If the Component cannot establish communication with the backup DB Server (for example, if the backup DB Server is not properly configured or not running or for other reasons), then the Component tries to establish a connection to the primary DB Server. Essentially, the Component does this by trying to connect to each server alternately until either connection is established.

The system administrator can configure options for the DB Server Warm Standby mode by modifying the Server Info > Backup Server and Server Info > Reconnect Timeout properties of the DB Server Application object in the Genesys Configuration Layer.

# Update of Genesys Do Not Call Field Based on Either Customer ID or Phone Numbers

The Campaign Synchronization Component can be configured to update the Genesys Do Not Call list with either Customer IDs or phone numbers of Siebel Contacts or Prospects marked as Do Not Call. For details see the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide.

### Warm Standby Mode Support

The Campaign Synchronization Component can be configured to support a Backup Server in Warm Standby mode.

For details see the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide.




Chapter



# **Agent Information**

This chapter provides step-by-step instructions for agents who work with the *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM.

This chapter covers the following topics:

- Logging Into the Siebel Server, page 38
- Making Yourself Ready or Not Ready, page 39
- The Voice Component, page 42
- Multimedia Component, page 58
- Media Routing Component, page 75
- Logging Out, page 78

The section titled "The Communications (CTI) Toolbar and Controls" on page 20 of Chapter 2 provides general information about buttons and controls used to perform the steps in this chapter.

As an agent, you will be working with features associated with one or more of the following *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM components:

- Voice Component Incoming/outgoing phone calls, Outbound campaigns, Universal (Voice and Web) callback, Expert Contact
- Media Routing Component Siebel eMail processing
- Gplus Multimedia Component Chat, Co-Browse, and Genesys E-mail
- **Note:** Many variations are possible in phone and CTI technology, and in the site-specific installations of the Genesys and Siebel products. For this reason, the procedures that you should follow at your site may be different from those presented in this document. The procedures provided here are merely examples. Your organization's System Administrators and Supervisors may define different procedures for you to use.

# **Logging Into the Siebel Server**

Agents typically log in to all of the media defined as standard for their configuration profile.

To start, you must log into the Siebel Server:

- 1. Enter the following information in the Siebel Login window:
  - your User Name
  - your Password
- 2. Click OK.

**Note:** If an agent is in the Siebel configuration which is associated with the Adapter, then the agent will also log into the Queue specified by the configuration (ACD group).

The next step is to make yourself Ready.

**Note:** Genesys recommends that you do not sign into two different computers at the same time using the same sign in password.

Figure 9 shows the screen you see when you log into the Voice Component.

	a car centar	- Horosant Bitterine	a capacitor						
		eventes Josis (ja							
O Barl	C + Q + B	2 🏠 🔎 Seat	di Pavortas	0 2.15	<u>72</u>				
Address	http://gpv	n+licalizenter_enu/sta	art. pwo?SWEOrad=Lo	ophoswept=16_s	r=DK3xxxxqP0x6qCuddRNRRcjW2LLnfgE	5200468400_654E75=118660091314585WEHc-	-goine4		. 🕰
File	Edit West Na	vigate Query Tool	s Heb						OR
14	10 3	1 M 2 a	133					Saved Queries: Default	
	9 00:00 00			1 mr. m. 2+1	2 2 1 A			AJAIRBER	
There:	a unim na		5) A · A	100 00 00 00	G 12 @	- Di & 14 (46	1. 100 1. 200 1.	1 · 0 9 9 9 9 9	die bei bei bie Ge
	100.0			-	rd n hu 10 mm 10	Quotes 🛃 Administration - Product			
		cousts   112 cus	cacca (in obta	remains W	sans unders 12 service 1	Administration - Product			
									Đ
MY	Homepage	e Welcor	me Back Fg75_o	11g75_01. Te	oday is Wednesday, August 08, 2	007.	My Calendar	1 P H	
My	Activities						Date: Aug w	8 = 2007 = 60	
101	New	Type	Description	PriceRy	Activity				
>	-	Cal-Outbound	Record(1107) pho	one.		1	Wednesday 8/	8/2007	Naces 1
		Call- Outbound	Record(1111)pho	one		4	UZEDD AM		
		Cal-Outbound	Record(1387) pho	one .					
		Cal- Outbound	Record(1115) pho	one			10:00 AM		
		Call - Outbound	Record(1339) phy	one					
		Call - Outbound	Record 1163 pho	one			11:00 AM		
		Call-Outbound	Record(1251) phy	906		1			
							12:00 PM		
							01:00 214		
							141.000 F/ F		
							112:00 PM		
							02600 PH		
							The second second		
							04:00 PM		
							05:00 214		
							101-101 014		
							My Alerts		
							Abstract	Message Body	

Figure 9: Agent's View of the Siebel Call Center

### **Notification of Interactions**

An interaction occurs when a real person communicates with another real person, or with some message representing a person. A phone conversation between two people is an interaction, and so is a session between a person and an IVR system that asks the person for her social security number. Receiving an e-mail is an interaction.

A screen pop or a blinking icon provides a notification, which is how the desktop tells you that a (potential) new incoming interaction is ready for your attention. The screen pop may identify the type of interaction as, for example, an e-mail, or chat.

You are notified about all incoming interactions on EventRinging (Voice) or OpenMediaInvited (Genesys E-Mail, Chat, Siebel eMail, and other open media items). You receive notifications in Predictive and Progressive dialing modes.

Before you can start receiving notifications, you must make yourself Ready, as described in the next section.

# **Making Yourself Ready or Not Ready**

After you log in, you must make yourself Ready to use some or all types of media before you can start accepting interactions. Depending on your work at the Contact Center, you may want to select particular types of interactions to be ready for, or select types not to be ready for.

The information in this section is provided under the following headings:

- Make Ready/Not Ready Controls, page 39
- Making Yourself Ready to Use Media, page 40
- Making Yourself Not Ready, page 41

## Make Ready/Not Ready Controls

The Toolbar includes the all-inclusive Make Ready button, and also a set of ready buttons for each different type of media.

The easiest approach is to select the Ready button to make yourself Ready. See Figure 12. Click this button to make yourself Ready to all types of media defined by the Agent profiles for the particular Siebel configuration.



Figure 10: Ready Button

For a more specific approach, use the media type buttons. From left to right the buttons in the Figure 11 represent voice, Genesys E-mail, Chat, and Siebel eMail.

2 🖂	Ð	Ξ
-----	---	---

Figure 11: Media Type Buttons

There are other Media Type group buttons. By positioning your cursor over an "arrow" next to the group button, you can expand it to reveal its sub-buttons. Table 1 lists the different Media Type buttons, and emphasizes the relationship between the group buttons and their sub-buttons.

### Table 1: Buttons by Media Type

Group Button		Corresponding Sub-Buttons				
Login to All Channels	Login to Voice	Login to Voice Login to Multimedia				
Logout from All Channels	Logout from Voice	Logout from M	Logout from Multimedia			
Ready for All Channels	Ready for Voice Calls	Ready for E- mail	Ready for Chat	Ready for Siebel eMail		
Accept incoming work item	1 0		ing Interaction			
Initiate work item	Make Call	Send E-mail		Send Siebel eMail		

## Making Yourself Ready to Use Media

Select the Ready button to make yourself Ready. See Figure 12. The interaction dialog box displays.



### Figure 12: Ready Button

To make yourself Ready:

- **1.** Select what you want to be ready for, as follows:
  - Click the Ready button (see Figure 12 on page 40). The Ready button makes you Ready for all channels.

Or

• In the Media Type buttons expansion with sub-buttons, you can select a specific media type to make yourself Ready for that media type. For example, in Figure 13, the Set ready for Email is selected.



Figure 13: Set Ready Interaction Types

**Note:** The interaction types in grey are not available to you. If you are supposed to be available for an interaction type that displays as grey, see your system administrator.

The available interaction types are as follows:

- Phone (includes Universal Callback)
- Genesys E-mail
- Genesys Chat
- Co-browse

Now you are ready to accept interactions. If you are working with more than one type of media, selecting the Ready button will make you Ready for all media types assigned to you.

### **Making Yourself Not Ready**

To make yourself Not Ready:

**1.** *For all media channels*, click the Not Ready button, (see Figure 14 on page 41).

A dialog box opens (see Figure 15 on page 42) in which you can enter a reason for your Not Ready status *for all media channels*.

2. In the Media Type buttons expansion with sub-buttons for the NotReady state, you can select a specific media type to set to the NotReady state for the particular media type.



Figure 14: Not Ready Button

Query Go Cantal	Find Type 💟 Starting with	Go 1-1of3
	Туре	
>	Gone for break	
>	Lundh	
>	Restroom	

Figure 15: Reason Code for Changing Status to Not Ready

**Note:** For information about Not Ready reason codes, see Siebel documentation.

## **The Voice Component**

When you work with inbound or outbound phone calls you are using the Voice Component. The voice component includes several features:

- Basic Voice
- Outbound Campaign
- Universal Callback
- Expert Contact

Step-by-step instructions for working with each of these features are provided below.

Not all desktops have all features. Your desktop may have some or all of the buttons and controls mentioned in this section. If a feature is not installed, then your desktop will not have the controls needed to use the feature or the control will be disabled (grayed) and you will not be able to perform the procedures associated with that feature. Your System Administrator or Supervisor can identify the components and features that you have.

After you sign in and log on to the Voice Component you will see the screen shown in Figure 9 on page 38. This image shows the Siebel Call Center with the Adapter after you log in, but before a call is received.

### **The Basic Voice Feature**

When you work with inbound or outbound phone calls you are using the Basic Voice feature. Additional features may also be involved. (For example, outbound calls that involve campaign information or controls may involve the Outbound Campaign feature as well.) The Basic Voice feature provides the commonly used telephone functions, while other Voice Component features

provide more advanced options. The Basic Voice feature supports the following procedures:

- **Basic Voice Controls**
- Answering an Incoming Phone Call ٠
- Making a Call
- Putting a Call on Hold •
- Retrieving a Call Put on Hold •
- ٠ Transferring a Call
- Adding a Conference
- ٠ Setting Forward
- **Cancelling Forward** •
- Hanging Up

Each of these procedures is described below. All of these procedures assume that you are in the Ready state. See "Making Yourself Ready or Not Ready" on page 39 for details.

### **Basic Voice Controls**

Basic Voice controls are standard Siebel Call center buttons and are supplied as a part of standard installation. See the Siebel Call Center Administration Guide and User Guide for detailed information. The Communication Toolbar provides the following Basic Voice buttons, which function as described:



Make call: Initiates new interaction, voice call, e-mail, or other supported media type.



Answer call: Answers incoming interaction request.



Resume: Resumes work item (for example, a work item put on hold).



Hang up: Hangs up work item.



Conference: Makes a consult call to establish a conference.



One step mute transfer: Initiates mute (or blind) transfer.



0

Two step consultative transfer: Initiates a consult call to start a consultative transfer.

🧭 Set Forward / Cancel Forward: Sets or cancels a call forwarding request.

### **Answering an Incoming Phone Call**

To answer an incoming phone call:

**1.** Click the blinking phone icon. This starts the interaction and enables the applicable embedded Genesys voice controls.

In the Work Item window, the caller's name and information displays and you hear the customer on the line.

- 2. Once you accept a phone call, you can do one of the following:
  - **a.** Transfer the call or initiate a conference (see also the section below, "About Transfer and Conference Calls")
  - **b.** Put the call on Hold
  - **c.** End the Call
- **3.** To end the call, save any customer information and click the Hang up button.

You will be made available to take a new call.

### Making a Call

To make a call:

• Enter the DN and click the Make Call button.

### Putting a Call on Hold and Retrieving it from Hold

To put a call on hold:

• Click the Hold button.

To retrieve a call from hold:

• Click the Resume button.

### **About Transfer and Conference Calls**

On the Siebel CRM Communications Toolbar, there is one button for toggling between TransferInit and TransferComplete, and another button for toggling between ConferenceInit and ConferenceComplete. In both cases, a single button is mapped to two device commands, and that button allows you to select one device command or the other, but not both at the same time.

## Transferring a Call

You can perform two types of call transfers, as explained below:

• One-step ("mute" or "blind") transfers, in which you enter or select the number to which the call should be transferred, and then click the button "Blind transfer to …".



• Two-step transfers, in which you connect the first caller to another party (as in a consultative call) and then disconnect yourself.

Details about these two types of transfers are provided below.

#### **One-Step Transfers**

For a one-step transfer:

• Enter or select the number to which the call should be transferred, and then click the button BLind transfer to.

#### **Two-Step Transfers**

For a two-step transfer:

- 1. Click the Consultative Transfer to button.
- 2. After the initial interaction has been established, and after a Consult call has been established and the initial conversation with the other consulting party is over, click the Complete transfer button or the Hang up button.

### Conferencing

To initiate a two-step conference:

- 1. Click the Conference Transfer to button.
- 2. After the initial interaction has been established, and after a Consult call has been established and the initial conversation with the other consulting party is over, click the Complete conference button.

### Hanging Up

To disconnect from the work item:

• Click the Hang up button.

### Set Forward / Cancel Forward

To forward a call:

• Enter the forwarding extension and click the Set Forward button. Calls will be forwarded to this DN.

To cancel forwarding of a call:

• Enter the forwarding extension and click the Cancel Forward button. Calls will be received on the agent's DN.

## The Outbound Campaign Feature

The Outbound Campaign feature is meant for Call Centers with a large volume of outbound traffic.

To make a simple outbound call, like the call you can make from any phone, use the procedure described in the section titled "Making a Call" on page 44.

When making calls associated with an outbound campaign, the *Gplus* Adapter's Outbound Campaign feature provides you with additional options, as described under the following headings:

- Outbound Campaign Controls
- Working with an Outbound Call in Progressive or Predictive Dialing Mode
- Working with an Outbound Call in ASM Mode
- Working with an Outbound Call in Preview Dialing Mode
- Accepting and Rejecting Preview Interaction Requests
- **Note:** These Outbound Campaign options use a particular set of Communications Toolbar buttons and controls that transmit commands to the Genesys Outbound Contact Server (OCS). The OCS assists you in processing outbound campaign calls.
- **Note:** Genesys does not recommend one step (mute or blind) transfers working with outbound OCS calls, because if the agent on the receiving side works with customer records, then the record for the one step transferred call will be stored in the Genesys OCS database with the status of a Current Call and will be marked as Processed, and the transferred record will became a new active record.

### About the Dialing Modes Available When Using This Feature

The Outbound Campaign feature provides three different dialing modes: Preview, Predictive, and Progressive.

In Preview mode, an agent previews the calling list record on a Preview screen and manually selects the outbound call to be dialed.

The Progressive and Predictive modes are different, and utilize OCS automatic dialing capabilities.

In Progressive mode, a call is placed when an agent is available, that is, after the agent's status changes to Ready.

In Predictive mode, the automatic dialer tries to predict agent availability and places calls in advance based on calculations that predict agent availability.

To minimize the number of lost predictive calls during a mass log-out (such as occurs at the end of a shift, or equivalent), a Controlled Logout option is available. It enables the *Gplus* Adapter to obtain from OCS an estimated time

until Logout. When this time expires, the Adapter automatically executes the Logout process, enabling the Predictive algorithm to complete dialing inadvance calls until the appropriate time. The Controlled Logout option enforces constraints that prevent an agent from logging out until a certain time. The details are explained below, under the heading "Controlled Logout Option" on page 48.

#### Purpose

The Preview dialing mode is recommended for low-volume, high-value campaigns (see sample in Figure 16 on page 48).

Predictive dialing mode automatically dials calls from a calling list and predicts agent availability. It is recommended for high-volume, low-value campaigns.

Progressive dialing mode automatically dials calls from a calling list only when an agent is available. It is recommended for high-volume, high-value campaigns.

the test to be a set of the set o	rch 🔅 Pare	artas 🙆 👉 🖓	a and a second s							
drama 📵 http://gpvm/f/calicenter_enu/st	tart swe?SWE	Cond=Login@SWEPL=18	xSWE75=1184703754718							
The Edit New Navigate Query Too	as Histo									
619 - 2 1 3 3	1 5	a							Saved Queries:	
G 00:01:42	314	- 画面白山	·新海 ···Preview	interaction from 6633	555100 💌		4.4.	11.11.10		影影师
ripegi:	144	1	12	Lut	-					
Home 🦳 Accounts 🔃 Car	atacta	Opportunities	Sales Orders Ser	vice 📓 Quotes				Campaign Manbana		
nutb75_camp3						ters   ritera	Lampagne	1 cardrady carbons		
Menu + Query										
Campaign Name:* outb75_camp3		Planned Start:* 3(2)	10007-00-00-00-00	Satus: Laurch	a (12)	Region		3		
Campaign Code: * 1-337333		Planned Endi* 7/3		Priority	ed 💌	Organization (	athand 75			
Type		Execution Period	2	Category: Sales		Group		11		
Objectives		E-to-select of total	-	Courter 1. South	C.P.	Team 0	2000	-		
	-	to a local de la companya de la comp	the second second second	the second second second		Topic 1	N. ST. S.	-		
Activities Calendar My Contax Menu • Pick Contacts Pick Pro			Treatments Overview I to Opportunity Create Resp	the second s						
Done Date/Time	Туре	And in the second second	ast Nam Prospect Last Nam	CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER.	The second se	tahis	Outcome	Geganization (	wr Position Owner	Load #
>	Contact	CLIPTED		33, 175, 1		ritown			UTE Televalietra	1
(2) 625 1										
• C3_g75_1 Menu • Query:										-
A REAL PROPERTY AND A REAL					Account Inform	nation				-
Menu • Query	=: C1.975.3		- Contact First Survey	03.971.1	Account Inform	nation Account	1			-
Menu + Query Personal Information		3	Contact First Surve Prospect First Surve		Account Inform					1
Menu + Query Personal Information Contact Last Nam	et:				Account Inform	Account				
Menu + Query Personal Information Contact Last New Last name of the prosper	et: Pa:		Prospect First Name:		Account Inform	Account Sta		ц		
Meno + Query Personal Information Contact Last New Last name of the prosper YeyP Piddle New	et: Pa:		Prospect First Name:		Account Inform	Account Star Didd Industry		Ш		1
Menu + Query Personal Information Contact Last New Last name of the prospec Mode New Companyon Status	et: Ma: Ma:	2	Prospect Parat Name Job Title		Account Inform	Account Site Dial Industry Industry		ц		1
Menu + Query Personal Information Contact Last New Last name of the prospec Might Nickle New Companyo Status # of Attempts	at: **: **:	8	Prospect First Name Job Tele: Position Owner	Telenartating Si	Account Inform	Account Star DNB Industry Industry DUNS #		ц		1
Menu + Query Personal Information Contact Last New Last name of the prospec Might Pitche New Campaign Status & of Attempts Call Status:	at: ns: a Uninoven	3 10 10	Prospect Plant Name Job Title: Position Owner Organization Owner	Televarheting Si Outbound_75, INT Si	Account Inform	Account Star DBB Industry Industry DURS # Work Fac #				-
Menu + Query Personal Information Contact Last New Last name of the prospec Migh Pitche New Campaign Status & of Attempts Call Status Call Status	at: na: a Uninoven	3 1 1 1 1	Prospect Plant Name Job Title: Position Owner Organization Owner Updatest	Televariating Sal Outbound_75, INT Sal 2/22/2007 04/56:2 #	Account Infor	Account Star DBB Industry Industry DURS # Work Part # Time Zone Annual Ravenue				-
Menu + Query Personal Information Contact Last New Last name of the proper My/M Midde New Companya Status af of Attempts Cal Status: Cal Status: Cal Status: Beachactula: Trus:	at: na: a Uninoven		Prospect Plant Name Job Title: Position Owner Organization Owner	Telenarbating Sil Outbourd_75, NT Sil 2/22/2007 04/56/2 # G75_04		Account Silor Didd Undustry Undustry Duites an Work Paul & Time Zone Armuel Revenue metion				-
Menu + Query Personal Information Contact Last New Last name of the proper My/M Midde New Companya Status af of Attempts Cal Status: Cal Status: Cal Status: Beachactula: Trus:	at : ne : 0 Uninown 5/19/2007 64		Prospect Plant Name Job Title: Position Owner Organization Owner Updated By:	Telenariating Sa Outbourd_75, INT Sa 2(22)(2007 04:56:2 (b) G75_04		Account Star DBB Industry Industry DURS # Work Part # Time Zone Annual Ravenue				-

Figure 16: Preview Dialing Mode

**Controlled Logout Option** 

When using OCS, the controlled logout option is available. This option enforces constraints that prevent an agent from logging out until certain conditions have been met. The details are explained below.

In Predictive Dialing mode, OCS can dial more calls than there are agents available in the group. The predictive dialing algorithm does real-time pacing calculations based on continuously sampled values of various parameters, including the number of available agents logged in within the sample group. For more information about the Predictive Dialing mode, see the *Outbound Contact 7 Getting Started Guide*.

When using Outbound Contact 7 with the G*plus* Adapter Outbound Campaign feature, and working in predictive dialing mode with the controlled logout option in force, you will experience the following circumstances and rules:

Due to the nature of the Predictive dialing mode, an agent cannot necessarily log out immediately, that is, by simply clicking the logout button. In this scenario, if the agent clicks the logout button, then a message appears in the top of the that agent's window area, displaying the number of seconds left until logout; for example, "You have 120 seconds before logout." This message displays for a few seconds and then disappears. If the agent wants to check the number of seconds before logout again, the agent can click on the logout icon and the current number of seconds until logout is displayed. The agent continues to receives interactions until he or she is completely logged out.

When the agent is completely logged out, that is, when the time for logout is reached, the logout icon becomes unavailable. Until that time, the agent continues to receive interactions.

If the logout time arrives while the agent is handling an interaction, the agent will not be automatically logged out until the interaction is completed.

When the agent logs out, a pop-up message appears. allowing the agent to select the reason for logout.

Refer to your System Administrator for details. The *Gplus* Adapter Deployment Guide contains setup details that provide additional information.

### **Outbound Campaign Controls**

The Communication Toolbar provides a set of Outbound Campaign buttons and controls, which function as described below. Because these communicate with the Outbound Contact Server (OCS), they are sometimes called the OCS Controls.

**Note:** Outbound Campaign Controls are also available in the Campaign Contact Details applet.

Figure 17 shows the Outbound Campaign toolbar and its buttons. The toolbar includes the Mark Phone DoNotCall and the Record Cancel buttons, which are described in the next section.



Figure 17: Controls for the Outbound Campaign functions

Start Preview: Starts the preview dialing mode session. This button is enabled after an agent has logged into Genesys, when the Outbound contact Server (OCS) is running, and the Campaign is loaded and started. The Preview Mode Over and Request Record buttons also become enabled.

🔂 Stop Preview/Preview Mode Over: Finish the preview dialing mode session. This button is enabled after the Preview session is started. Note that the agent can not finish a Preview session until there are records on the agent's desktop.

Request Record: Sends a request to OCS for a new record. Upon delivery of the record to an agents desktop, a Siebel pop-up screen appears with customer information, and record-handling buttons on the Communication toolbar become active.

Request Chain Record: Sends request to OCS to deliver the rest of the chain (if it exists). Because a chain represents different phone numbers for the same Siebel contact (for example, home phone #, work phone #, and so forth), the same contact screen remains active. Each chained record creates a new item in the Work Items list. Switching between work items inside the same chain does not cause the contact screen to be refreshed.

Reject Interaction: Rejects record back to OCS server for further distribution to other agents. You can only reject a record if not operations have been performed on that record.



Cancel Interaction: Marks the record Canceled and removes it from the desktop. The Contact record will not be delivered to any agent for calling during current campaign. Note that this operation cancels the current contact and chain (if delivered).



Wark record Do Not Call: Marks the contact record as Do Not Call and removes it from your desktop. After marking, the Contact's record is included in the Do Not Call list and will not be called again for any campaign. This operation marks the contact and the rest of chain as Do Not Call (DNC) such that the contact will not be used in any future campaigns. Several configuration options exist: Mark Phone DNC, Mark Record DNC, Mark Contact DNC based on customer ID. The Gplus Adapter Deployment Guide contains detailed information about DNC administration.

Mark Reschedule Interaction: Updates the Outbound Contact Server database with selected time to receive a callback and reschedule type – Campaign or Personal. Campaign or Personal type should be selected from the popup window. Time should be selected on the Contact/Prospect Details View in the field Reschedule Time.

Interaction Processed: Completes work with the Contact record and removes it from the Work Items list on the Communications Toolbar. Clicking this button notifies OCS that operations with the current contact records have been completed and that a record of the final information must be permanently stored in the OCS database. This button removes the contact record and the rest of the chain from the Work items list on the Communications toolbar. If more records exist in the Work Items list, the agent's desktop screen refreshes and displays a pop-up contact screen for current record.

**Note:** You can transfer calls and set up conference call for Outbound Campaign calls. For basic information about Transfers and Conferences, refer to "About Transfer and Conference Calls" on page 44.

### **Contact/Prospect Details View**

Changes to the following fields on the Contact/Prospect Details Applet view are updated or used for updates in the Genesys OCS database and the Siebel database:

- # of Attempts: The number of attempts made for a call record is sent to Outbound Contact Server as an UpdateCallStatus command attribute GSW\_CALL\_STATUS. Refer to Figure 18, below. Be aware that the OCS field showing the number of attempts is updated only while Preview Dialing Mode is running. While in Progressive/Predictive Modes, the *Gplus* Adapter sends updates, but they are ignored by OCS (in compliance with OCS design specifications). For more information on this attribute, see the *Outbound Contact 7 Reference Guide*.
- Call Status: The status of a call sent to OCS as UpdateCallStatus command attribute GSW\_CALL\_STATUS. For more information on this attribute, see the *Outbound Contact 7 Reference Guide*.
- Outcome: The outcome of your interaction that you selected from the dropdown box. The value is stored only in the Siebel database.
- Reschedule Time: The rescheduled time you selected to receive a callback, which is sent to Outbound Contact Server as an attribute of the RescheduleRecord command.

Figure 18 shows the Number of Attempts dialog box.

Campaign Status	
# of Attempts:	1
Call Status:	Agent CallBack Eri 💌
Call Outcome:	-
Reschedule Time:	5/19/2007 04:25:1 🗮
Created:*	3/22/2007 03:23:4 🔡
Email Bounce Type:	-
Offer Name:	Campaign3_offer 🖪
Treatment Name:	Campaign3_treatm 🔄

Figure 18: Number of Attempts Dialog Box

# Working with an Outbound Call in Progressive or Predictive Dialing Mode

If you are working with outbound campaign calls, whether you are working in Predictive or Progressive Dialing mode, follow these steps to process an outbound campaign call:

1. Click the Ready button to make yourself Ready for the call.

The OCS dials a call for you. When the call connects, the OCS transfers it to you, and the drop-down box in your Communications Toolbar displays the customer's phone number.

2. Click on the Accept Phone button to accept the call.

If the customer record includes a chain, both records in the chain display.

Note: You can have a maximum of two chained records per customer.

At this point, you can use a Call Result command to process the call. See "Using Call Result Commands" on page 54 for details. The following options are available to you:

- **a.** Transfer or conference (see also "About Transfer and Conference Calls" on page 44 for related information)
- **b.** Update record
- c. Schedule a Callback (personal or campaign)
- d. Add to Do Not Call list
- **3.** To complete the call, select Update record to save the customer's information.
- 4. After you end your conversation with the customer, click Ready.

You are ready to take the next call.

### Working with an Outbound Call in ASM Mode

If you are working with Outbound Campaign calls in ASM Dialing mode, follow these steps to process an Outbound Campaign call:

1. Click Ready to make yourself Ready for the call.

The OCS dials a call for you.

2. Click Accept Phone to accept the call.

After call is established, OCS dials Contact. When the call connects, the OCS transfers it to you, and the drop-down box in your Communications Toolbar displays the customer's phone number. Further workflow does not differ from working in Predictive or Progressive Dialing modes.

If the customer record includes a chain, both records in the chain display.

Note: You can have a maximum of two chained records per customer.

**3.** At this point, you can use a Call Result command to process the call.

See "Using Call Result Commands" on page 54 for details. The following options are available to you:

- **a.** Transfer or conference (see also "About Transfer and Conference Calls" on page 44 for related information).
- **b.** Update record
- c. Schedule a Callback (personal or campaign)
- $\boldsymbol{d}.$  Add to Do Not Call list
- 4. To complete the call, select Update record to save the customer's information.
- 5. After you end your conversation with the customer, click Ready.

You are ready to take the next call.

# Working with an Outbound Call in Preview Dialing Mode

- 1. Click the Preview Dialing Mode Start button.
- 2. Click the Preview Record Request button.
- **3.** Click the Make Call button on the Contact/Prospect Details applet. The OCS dials the call for you.
- 4. Click on the Accept Phone button to accept the call.
- **5.** The following options are available to you (for descriptions of these options, see "Using Call Result Commands" on page 54):

- **a.** Transfer or conference (see also "About Transfer and Conference Calls" on page 44 for related information)
- **b.** Update record
- c. Schedule a new Call time (personal or campaign)
- d. Add to Do Not Call list
- **6.** To finish the call:
  - Select Update record to save the customer's information.

You are ready to take the next call.

### **Accepting and Rejecting Preview Interaction Requests**

An incoming preview interaction request creates a new work item on the Siebel Communication toolbar, and the "Accept incoming interaction" button starts blinking.

• To reject the interaction, press the active Reject button.

### **Using Call Result Commands**

You can apply one of the following call result commands to a call to make a record of the way you processed that call, or to specify how the call or related callback should be processed:

- Transfer: Transfers or conferences the record. You can automatically switch between Conference and Transfer options. For example, consider a scenario in which you are talking with a customer and initiate a transfer call to a colleague using the TransferInit command. After clicking Transfer, you decide it may be helpful to remain on the call. In this case, you can click the Conference command and join the phone call.
- Schedule a Callback: To reschedule a call. When you reschedule a callback, you have the choice of selecting one of these callback types:
  - Personal: Reschedules a call and has the call delivered to you when the callback occurs.
  - Campaign: The default value for a record. This reschedules a call and has that call delivered to any agent in the campaign group when the callback occurs.

In the current configuration, it is possible to select both types (Personal and Campaign) simultaneously by selecting the check box next to each type. However, you should only select one reschedule type per record.

- Add to Do Not Call List: To assign a customer to the Do Not Call list. When added to this list, the customer will not receive any new calls.
- Process Records with the Same Call Result: When processing records with the same call result, you can press the key combination Ctrl+S, and the record will be saved. This record will be updated in the Genesys Outbound Contact Server with the same call result.

These Call Result commands involve Outbound Contact Server (OCS) functions. For more information about call results, see the Genesys *Outbound Contact 7 Deployment Guide*.

### **Descriptions of Treatment Types**

A treatment type is used to tell Outbound Contact Server how to respond to an unsuccessful call result (a call that does not reach the intended party). When you process a record, you have the choice of selecting one of two treatment types for unsuccessful call results:

- Personal
- Campaign

Select only one treatment type for each record.

### **Universal Callback Feature**

### Working with Universal Callback

This section presents simple scenarios that show different ways of working with the Universal Callback Server from the Siebel application.

To use the functionality of the Universal Callback Server (UCB) -enabled Siebel Call Center, you must create a callback request from either the Siebel desktop or the IVR side. After creating the callback request, the next step is to make an agent ready and wait for a callback request to be distributed from the voice callback queue.



#### Figure 19: Universal Callback Toolbar Buttons

Following are examples of how to work with Universal Callback.

- Initiate Callback call (in Callback Preview mode)
  - After the Callback interaction is delivered to agent and the Contact screen displayed, click the Make Call button on the Toolbar. This will initiate a call to the number, which was specified in the VCB\_CONTACT key.
  - To initiate Callback to a different number,
    - Enter a new phone in the Phone field on the Toolbar

or

• Select and highlight any text on the agent's desktop and press Initiate Callback. These options will initiate a call to the selected number.

- Add callback (see Figure 20 on page 56):
  - Create a new Activity record
  - Set type to Call
  - Set Priority
    - Set to ASAP
    - or
    - Set to other than ASAP and also set Due time
  - Specify the Routing Point
  - Save the record
  - Select Home or Work Phone number on the Contact Applet
  - Click the Add button
  - On the status line the message "Callback to phone number 4151234567 has been added" will be displayed.

Emissiles	0 6.4 .							
						_		
SEWERL =	18_sn=881/s10yl0gwa2512r4	aszun-kab bigu	ed.arla.ort."ap/lie	15=118546/99980185WE	na –gpsweb			and the second se
		_	_					These of the second
						Queries: *ALC	ontacts	100
新聞素	新日本			· · · in	・山・畑・畑	10000		A ( )
Drders S	ervice Quotes Admin	istration - Pre	oduct					
nal Contacts	List Charts Manager	r's Explorer	Contact Administr	ation				
								10+중3
								1.121
Work #:	4159131371	Account	1	Ste				
Ilain Fax #		Address			ы			
ble Phone #		City		State	*			
Email		Zip Code		Country				
reenente	Assessments Assets A	fachments C	akindar Credit Cr	arda Customer Sabafard	ion Survey   Households	Impices List Venbers	hip Notes Otters	Opportunities -
								11- 9 1-10   😅
	End		Priority	Routing Point	Due	Type	Status	Description
AM	7/27/2007 01:14:17 AM		1-ASAP	24091	7/27/2007 01:10:51 AJ	2 Call	Unscheduled	
AM	7/21/2007 03 04:53 AM		1-ASAP	24091	7/21/2007 03:04 53 AI	d Other	Completed	Calback numbert
AM	7/21/2007 03:02:42 AM		1-ASAP	24091	7/21/2007 02:59:41 AI	d Other	Completed	Calback number(
AM	7/21/2007 02:18:03 AM		1-ASAP	24091	7/21/2007 02:16:43 AI	d Other	Completed	Calback numbers
AM	7/10/2007 03:14:53 AM				7/10/2007 03:13:53 AJ	d Call	Completed	Calback numbers
AM	7/10/2007 03:13:37 AM				7/10/2007 03:13:37 Al	d Cal	Declined	Caliback number(
AM	7/26/2007 01 16 19 AM				7/10/2007 03:13:19 AJ	A Call	Completed	Calback number(
4.18	T/10/2007 02:47-46 AM		1.ACAD	74001	THE 2007 62 47 45 AL	d Dittant	Consistent	Caliback support

Figure 20: Add Callback

- Cancel Callback:
  - Locate Callback record
  - Click Cancel button
  - On the status line the message "Callback to phone number 4151234567 has been cancelled" will be displayed.
- Reschedule Callback:
  - Locate Callback record
  - Set "Due" time
  - Change Priority to non "ASAP"
  - Save record
  - Click Reschedule button
  - On the status line the message "Callback to phone number 4151234567 has been rescheduled" will be displayed.

## **Expert Contact Feature**

### **Expert Contact Feature Controls**

On/Off call button

### **Working with Expert Contact**

Following is an example of how to work with Expert Contact interactions.

- 1. Log in as an Agent and select the Ready button.
- 2. Press the On Call button on the Siebel Communication toolbar.

A new incoming call from an Unknown recipient will appear in the Work Items list on the Toolbar. Proceed with the call as if it were an incoming call so Genesys can track the call. From this point onward, use the same checking process applied to the Basic Voice feature, with the exception of testing of the confirm-status option.

- **3.** If the Confirm-status option is implemented, then a pop-up window should appear after the defined time-out period. That is, if an expert is on the call after the length of time set by the timer, a dialog box appears asking if the expert is still on the call and if the agent wants to continue.
- **4.** To use the Preview-interaction option (Preview mod)e installation when Preview mode is turned ON:
  - When an agent receives an incoming call, a new work item, Preview Request, is created on the Siebel Communication Toolbar, and the Accept Incoming Interaction button starts blinking. To accept the interaction, press the blinking button and use standard procedures for the call. Newly created call will reuse existing work item.

- If the Siebel preview-bell option is implemented, then you can use it by sending a interaction to an expert. A sound amy be played when the preview interaction dialog box appears.
- 5. If the Preview mode is set to OFF, then the Agent's work flow options are exactly the same as in the Basic Voice feature. The agent can place outbound calls, receive incoming calls, and make transfers.

### **Confirm Status Option**

If an expert forgets to use the desktop to indicate that she has completed a call, the Confirm Status option provides a reminder. More specifically, if the confirm-status option in the CTI-Less T-Server configuration object is set to true and its associated timer setting value is defined, then if an expert is on the call after the length of time set by the timer, a dialog box appears. The dialog box asks the expert if she is still on the call and if she wants to continue. This option addresses the possibility that an expert might forget to indicate that the call was completed after the call was actually released.

# **Multimedia Component**

The Multimedia Component provides E-mail and Chat features. This section describes how to use these features.

Access to multimedia functionality is available through the Siebel toolbar controls and controls on media-specific views (Chat, E-mail). These are described below.

## **Controlling Agent Status**

### Multimedia Login/Logout

Multimedia login buttons are shown in Figure 21. Multimedia logout buttons are shown in Figure 22.



Figure 21: Multimedia Login Buttons



Figure 22: Multimedia Logout Buttons

### **Ready/Not Ready Per Media Basis**

Group buttons are provided to make the agent Ready or Not Ready for all channels. To set the agent Ready *per channel*, use individual buttons. Refer to Figure 23.



Figure 23: Ready/Not Ready Buttons

## Working with Genesys E-mail

*Gplus* Siebel Multimedia E-mail allows handling of e-mail interactions. Typical scenarios for handling e-mail interactions include:

- Receiving Genesys E-mail
- Replying to Genesys E-mail

### **Receiving Genesys E-mail**

To be able to receive inbound interaction of Genesys E-mail, the agent should log in to Siebel and make himself/herself Ready for the Genesys E-mail channel.

When a new inbound e-mail interaction arrives, Genesys Multimedia routes the e-mail to the agent. The agent sees a flashing icon and the status line displays that a new e-mail interaction has arrived.

The agent clicks the Accept button to start work with the interaction. After the interaction is accepted, the new workitem appears in the list and the Adapter automatically shows the content of the e-mail (see Figure 24 on page 60).

**Note:** If the e-mail body is larger then 16KB, the entire original message body will be saved as an attachment, and a note that the body was attached is displayed. For example: Message is too large... whole content is attached as EmailBody.htm. The administrator can configure this note as desired.

Edit Yess Par Back - O	vorkes [ook He					
Back • O - e						
Party of the local data and the	the second se	h Favarites 4	RI LERRON THE			
nene 💽 http://gpvn	Contraction of the second second					
e Edit Vers fam	And I wanted to the second	e tela				
	1 1 3 3	一位周				Saved Querie
(1) 00:00 17	12	3+4+4	8. 新福田田	F>E-mail from dgure	we@mtet=009 💽 💽 🔍 🍐 🎍 🧃	• 10 •   e
nesys 🚰 Hom erations   Workber		Contacts	<b>Opportunities</b>	Sales Orders   9 5	ervien 📓 Quotes 🕌 Administration Product	
inbound Email				100000000	Outboard Email	
Menu • Reply	Repty All Mark	Done Contacts			Menu *	
From dgure	wyogmac-th-009				To:	
Ta shi es	<800-B-xhilles				Cu:	
02					000	
	ing E-mail sample				Subject:	
	and Praismon Southur				Attachments:	
A						
Attachments: 🗔 Hil	essade			4		
Attachments: 🕅				2		
Attachments: 177 Hil This is a test me				1		
Attachments: E Hil This is a test me Have a nice day! Suggestions		rr 🕴 Jobournil Aktachr	ments   Outbrund Attactm	z	Card & Concurs (	
Attachments: E Hil This is a test me Have a nice day! Suggestions	Finowledge Pitersog	n Sobourid Attacts	ments Ostburrd Attachn	z	Attre	
Attachments IT Hil This is a test me Have a nice day! Suggestions Menu + P	l Finoinledger Pitersog	al ministration	110Adam-dahara madama	z		
Attachments IT Hil This is a test me Have a nice day! Suggestions Menu + Pr Name	Photology Manage review Category Path	Description	Attachments N	z	Astre	

Figure 24: Receiving Genesys E-Mail

At this time, agent can perform the following actions:

- Transfer the inbound e-mail directly to another agent
- Transfer the inbound e-mail to another queue, so that another agent group can process the interaction
- Mark the interaction as Done
- Reply to the accepted e-mail (see "Replying to Genesys E-mail" on page 61).

### **Replying to Genesys E-mail**

The agent clicks the RepLy or RepLy ALL button to create a reply for the inbound e-mail. At this time, the inbound interaction will be marked Done and a new outbound e-mail interaction will be created.

The reply interaction will be created as a child interaction of the inbound. Screen navigation will be automatically performed by the Adapter. On this screen, both the inbound and outbound interactions will be displayed as shown in Figure 25. E-mail formatting (HTML or plain text) of created e-mail depends on the format of the inbound e-mail. If the inbound e-mail is plain text, the reply will be created as plain text. If the inbound e-mail is HTML, the reply will be created as HTML e-mail.

				10 X
-	ALCO LICE			1
Pavarces	@12+417			💌 🛃 Go Links **
eþ				ORACLE
5 1			Saved Queries:	च द द
teau and		entr00076a33kDD1001		
Contacts	s 🌆 Opportunities 🖉 Sales	Orders 9 Service	🗟 Quotes 🍻 Administration Product	
		-	Outbound Email	10
		-	Menu  ABSON Curracts	
			New Contraction	
			Tet dgarmyo@stad-009 Ce:	
			000	
			Subject: RE: Incoming E-rosil sample	
			Attachments: 🕅	-
		-1	12 A. M. 122 A. M. 1	
			Original Message From dgurevyt [mailto dgurevyc@mttc.tl-009]	
			Sent.05/07/2007 13:38:12	
			Torbi	
			Subject Incoming E-mail sample	
			Hill	-
			This is a test message.	-
		-	Send Check Spelling Save to Close	Geleta
nbound Attach	outbound Attachments			
				1-1d1 😰
ype	Modified Update Fi	le Comments		
¥.	5/7/2007 3:41:07 N 🖌			

Figure 25: Replying to Genesys E-Mail

The initial content of the outbound interaction will contain a copy of the inbound interaction content. (In the event that the total size of the generated initial content exceeds a system limit of 16,000 bytes, only the heading information about the original inbound interaction, with a short note that the administrator can configure, will be provided. In such a case, it is necessary to copy the essential part of the original e-mail into the reply.)

The Cc and To lines also will be filled depending on which action (RepLy or RepLy ALL) was requested.

In this mode, the agent can attach files, edit To (Cc) manually, or use a popup screen with a list of contacts. The agent can check spelling using a standard Siebel spell checker. At the bottom of the screen there is a tab that provides access to the list of attachments.

Actions available to the agent for an outbound e-mail interaction include:

- Transfer prepared outbound reply to another agent to continue processing
- Transfer prepared outbound reply to queue to continue processing by another agent group
- Send e-mail reply
- Save the interaction to continue processing at a later time
- Delete the interaction

When the agent saves the interaction, the interaction is placed into the MCR workbin. Available workbins are configured using the List Of Values, where the Name field defines Siebel's name for the workbin and Value is the name of the workbin in Genesys. Only personal workbins are supported.

### **Using Workbins**

The agent can save an outbound reply to postpone interaction processing. The Adapter prompts the agent to choose a workbin in which the interaction will be stored, as shown in Figure 26.

	Name	Value
>	BackGroundEmail	BackGroundEmail
>	Inbox	Inbox
>	Order	Order
>	Outbox	Outbox
>	Draft	Workbin for Original Agent
-	ANG -	

Figure 26: Workbin List

The agent can open a saved interaction at any time to continue processing, as shown in Figure 27 on page 63.

Gie 3 I	Edit Mew Favorite Jack • () - (a) (2)		
-11	ess http://gpvm1:606	and the start of t	The second second
24,00	e- Edit // View/ Navigate/	CONTRACTOR OF A	
ES .	• 🖾 🕘   🔟   1   😃 10 00 100	」   」   」   」   」   」	「「「「」」の「「」」の「「」」の「「」」で「「」」の「」」で、「」」の「」」で、「」」の「」」で、「」」の「」」で、「」」の「」」で、「」」の「」」で、「」」の「」」で、「」」の「」」で、「」」の「」
	nesys   🔐 Home   f eractions   WorkDam	Accounts	acts 🎼 Opportunities 🥃 Sales Orders 🤮 Service 🔛 Quotes 🌌 Administration - Produ
220	C C W C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C		
I	nteraction List	Menu • Query Op	
1	From To	Interaction Date	Subject
	and the state of the state of the state	State of the second	

Figure 27: Interaction List

Interactions can be edited by other applications. When the agent opens an interaction, it will always display its most recent content.

## Working with Chat

The G*plus* Siebel Multimedia Chat client allows handling chat sessions originated from Genesys-compatible chat clients.

A sample scenario is provided below:

1. Client connects to chat service from a Genesys-compatible chat application (see Figure 28).

MCR Samples 7.1.	Chat - Microsoft Internet	Explorer		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew F <u>a</u> v	orites <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp			
🕝 Back 🝷 🔘 -	🖹 👔 🏠 🔎 Search	n 🥎 Favorites 📢	🛛 🍛 · 🎍 i	w • 🔜 🎇 -
Address 🕘 http://gps:84	888/WebAPISamples71/Chat/Htm	lChatFrameSet.jsp		
1243		Chat ser	vice	
Personal informa	ation:	STUDE S		14 18 Sala
First name:	John	ST-	Last name:	Smith
E-mail address:	a@a.com	a week?	Subject	Inquire
1 CALSTREE	N SYLEYON ST.	Start chat	Stop chat	10 31.21
Welcome to Gen	has joined the sess			
Message:				Send
1				
			NAVA	
<u>ا</u>				

Figure 28: Client Connects to Chat Service

2. Agent logs in and makes himself/herself Ready. A Chat request is distributed to the agent. (see Figure 29).

and the latter and			
a Cite Them Lidnough	is Ioola Help		
Back - 0 - 1 1	G Search Favorit	tes el como Ta	
tene 💽 http://gpvnd:80	60/start.swe		
les Edit Vers Anvione	Query Tools Help	hat request from agracion	
	H J J J B B		Saved Queri
anoran 🕒		1. 张忠弘张扬 0	日日の日本・山川市・田川
1 a manual 1	1.442	malter the market set (	The second contract of the contract of the
mesys 😭 Home 🔢	Mccounts 11 Conta	acts 🌆 Opportunities 🞯 Sales Orders 🤗 Service 🔒 Que	tes 🕼 Administration - Product
teractions   WorkDeer		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
Interaction List	Menul . Query Op	en l	
From To	Interaction Date	Subject	
dgureeyc@mto-6-009	\$/19(2007 8:04:24 AM	RE 414444444	
dgurevyc@mbx-fi-009	5/7/2007 3:26-28 AM	RE:Incoming E-mail sample	

Figure 29: Agent Receives Chat Request

**3.** The agent clicks the Accept button to accept the interaction and open the Genesys Multimedia chat screen with Knowledge Manager and Standard Response Library (SRL). (See Figure 30).

Siebel Call Center - Microsoft Internet Explorer				
le Edit Yem Mavorites Eools Help				
Back + 🔿 - 🖻 😰 🕼 🖉 Search 🤺 Favorites 🥷 😒 + 🐷 🖓	1			
green 💼 http://gpvmi:8060/start.swe				
te Edit vere terrigane Query Tools Help				
				Saved Querie
(1) 0007.58 (1) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	S @ Lycout	aniostānie sēja trim	BERMAN	1.
	e en l'an L'anne	edanner a aus adfia rasu	21 1 - 1 1	I TO THE COMPANY OF
enesys 🔐 Home 🍋 Accounts 📅 Contacts 🕼 Opportunit	ies 🗐 Sales Ore	lers 9 Service E Qu	intes 👍 Administration - Produc	1
terations   Worldrem		1	a contraction of the second second	
[03:46:16] New party (JohnS) jamed the sension T03:46:18] Xohr65 Hallar [03:46:13] Wew party (JohnShitt) jamed the session [03:47:54] GRADMINE Help John   How are You!]		A 11		
F SendTranscript	Check Spelling 5	<u> </u>		
i sendiransalat	Uneok spearing 5	end		
Knowledge Manager				
E Categories	International Statements	eview Apply	100.00	11/2/00/00
E Categories	Response	Description	Туре	Active
방희 ott	Test > st	some SR sample	StandardResponse	N Y
🗄 🦲 Categories	S not approve		check a column disp. StandardResponse StandardResponse	N
Personnes Text Text Sill Sill ot2 Ext cot3 +	and the approve	a nacadatorna	, and have been been as	
1 (in the second				

Figure 30: Chat Screen Opens

4. The agent and client send messages to each other to conduct a chat session (see Figure 31). While typing a message the agent can check spelling using a standard Siebel spell checker. Newer messages appear on the bottom of the chat window by default. The administrator can configure the chat transcript direction as desired.

n Edit Henn Paronkes Eade Help		
Back • 🗇 - 💽 😰 🕼 🖉 Search 👈 Favorkes	ALC: NOT	
teres 🔂 http://gpvm1:8060/start.sven		
le Edit View Navigane Query Tools Help [0315	SE06] GPADHDN How are You?	
		Saved Que
<u>ه د م د التاريخ</u> الدورون ال	「新聞新展友」● Chatraquestform a@a.com	「臣を言う」を、御い聞い
and the second s	s 🕼 Opportunities 🗐 Sales Orders 🦉 Service 🔒 Qu	
teractions   Worldown	10 1 10 10 10 10	
[00:66:10] New party (Comm) kend the sension (00:66:10] New party (CDACMIN) kend the session (00:47:14] (CDACMIN) kend the session (00:47:14] (CDACMIN) Held Schni (00:56:06] (CDACMIN) Held Schni		
Provide Autor	Check Spelling [Send]	
5endTranscript		
i Sendmansonet Knowledge Manager		
Knowledge Manager	Menu • Prewew Apply	
Knowledge Manager	Menu + Preview Apply Response Description	Type Active
Knowledge Manager	The second	Type Active StandardResponse N
Knowledge Manager	Kesponse Description Test some SR sample	CONTRACT OF THE OWNER OWNER OF THE OWNER OWNE
Knowledge Manager	Kesponse Description Test some SR sample	StandardResponse N
Knowledge Manager	Response     Description       Test     some SR sample       I set     set sample       Srit     set sample       SR not approved     not approved	StandardResponse N check a column disp. StandardResponse Y
Knowledge Manager	Response     Description       Test     some SR sample       If i     oritivery lonit description to	StandardResponse N check a column disp. StandardResponse Y

Figure 31: Chat Session Proceeds

5. If a chat message comes when the appropriate chat interaction is *not* active, a special toolbar button becomes active and "blinking" (see Figure 32 on page 68). This button allows the agent to quickly make the appropriate chat session active.

ebel Call Center -	Microsoft Interne	t Explorer				
Edt Ven Fa	portes Jools He					
Back - 0 - 1	13 G P Seat	th Favorites	ST WAS A			
nene 💽 http://gpvb	h1:8060/start.swe					_
e Edit Vere Nev	ighte Query Tool	196 [06:37	12] John 5: How are	You?		
10 M	1 1 2 2	「山山			Saved Queri	nk:
() 02:37:35 [	1		建设 化		1 - D - D - D - D - D - D - D - D - D -	8
nesys   📿 Hom eactions   Workite		Contacts	e Opportunities	Sales Orders 9 5	ervice 🔓 Quotes 🏄 Administration Product	
nbound Email					Outbound Email	
Heru •					Menu + Aboli. Cuntada	
From da.re	wyo@mcr-tH009				To: dgu/wyo@stx-0-009	
	ekämis-H-009>				Ce:	
Cc.	CARLOC R SEC				800	
	ing E-mail sample				Subject: RElincoming E-mail sample	
Attachmenta: IT	ing t-rice sample				Attachments: 🔛	
attoo mentos to						
Hil This is a test m Have a nice day					Original Message From diprevyt [mailto/diprevyt@mist-8-009] Sent 05/07/2007 13:23:21 Toubl SubjectIncoming E-mail sample Hil This is a test message	
				-1	Send Check Spatling	544
Menu = P	review Apply	Martin Colora	nents   Outbrund At	Lachwerks		
Name	Category Path	Description	Attachments		Active	
> Test	sebel/catl	some SR sample	N		<u>и</u>	
sei	sebel/cati	srit very liph descri not approved	N V		y N	
SR nut approved	Introducier 1	not approved			14	

Figure 32: Make Appropriate Chat Session Active

Also, the agent can perform the following actions:

- Transfer the chat session directly to another agent
- Transfer the chat session to another queue, so that another agent group can process the interaction

6. Another party may leave the chat session, or an agent can explicitly leave the chat session using the Leave Chat button. After the chat session becomes offline, the agent can look at the transcript and perform some post-processing activities (see Figure 33).



Figure 33: Chat Session Concludes

7. To completely remove the chat interaction from the desktop, the agent must use the Mark Done button. Please note that it is possible to configure the transcript function such that the transcript will never be sent to the customer, or will automatically be sent to the customer regardless of the state of the Send Transcript check box. Please consult your administrator about these configuration preferences.

### **Transferring Genesys E-Mail and Chat Interactions**

Whenever the agent works with a Genesys interaction (Inbound and Outbound E-mail or Chat) the agent can transfer it directly to another agent or to another queue. To do this:

1. Click the Transfer button on the Communication toolbar (see Figure 34).



Figure 34: Transfer E-Mail or Chat

After you click the Transfer button, the applet for transferring an interaction to an agent appears (see Figure 35).

This applet allows you to choose an agent to transfer to, and also switches to the applet for transferring an interaction to a queue (see Figure 36). The applet for transferring an interaction to a queue allows switching to the applet for transferring to an agent as well.

	Called Street	ctive Configuration 🖃 starting	a websit	Find Provides 1-1 of 1 No
Active Configuration	Agent	Agent Login	First Name	Last Name 🚍
> Genesys Configuration	DEVO	a_1001	dev0	dev0
Transfer To Queue				OK Cancel

Figure 35: Transferring an Interaction to an Agent

http	o://gpvm1:8080 - Choose a Queue to transfer to - Microsoft Internet Explorer	
		Previous: L = 10 of 10+
	Queue	
>	Inbound e-mails1	
>	E-mails send error1	
>	E-mails for processing by agents1	
>	Preprocessing failure	
>	Queue for inbound collaboration reply processing	
>	Redrect e-mail falure1	
5	E-mails for QA review1	
>	E-mail distribution/Queue	
>	Inbound e-mail postprocessing3	
>	Preprocessing failure1	
Tra	nsfer To Agent	OK Cancel
Don	e.	O Trusted sites

Figure 36: Transferring an Interaction to a Queue

# Working with Multiple Interactions Using Genesys Standard Response Library

Standard response preview is available for inbound and outbound E-mail interactions and for Chat interactions.

When an outbound E-mail interaction or Chat interaction is active, the Apply button is enabled. It allows inserting a rendered body of a standard response into the head of the outbound e-mail's body or into the head of the new chat message.

Because the Standard Response Library (SRL) has a hierarchical structure, the Knowledge Manager tab contains a tree control which allows navigation through categories and subcategories. For each category and subcategory, a list of standard responses is provided as shown in Figure 37 on page 72.



Figure 37: Standard Response Library - Knowledge Manager Tab

When a response is selected, the user can see its content as it is stored in the SRL (not rendered).

The Apply button renders the response using the interaction context to substitute field codes, and inserts text into outbound e-mail. If the agent wants to preview the rendered standard response before inserting, the agent should use the Preview button instead.

The Preview button shows a rendered response including field codes if any. A sample is shown in Figure 38 on page 73.
m1:8080 - Standard Response Preview - M	
sr1	
siebel/cat1	
sr1 very long description to check a column disp	olay behaviour
Sample.jpg	
	&aaa
	sr1 siebel/cat1 sr1 very long description to check a column disp Sample.jpg gurevyc

Figure 38: Standard Response Preview Sample

Standard response preview is available for both inbound and outbound interactions.

When an outbound interaction is active, the Apply button is enabled. It allows inserting a rendered body of a standard response into the head of the outbound e-mail's body.

The usual copy-paste method is allowed at any time.

At the same time, the Suggestions tab allows the user to look through standard responses which are suggested for an active interaction. Suggested responses are listed in a table form in this tab as shown in Figure 39. The Preview and Apply buttons are also available here to preview or insert any chosen response.

the second second second	Microsoft Interne portes [ools fir	and the second sec			
	Ponces Loos (ir		102.012		
trane ) http://gpvt	and the second se				
and the second se	name Query Tool	c the			
1 1 0 1 m					Saved Queries:
001144	THE PUBLIC DISC DISC	CA THU THE	10.000	@	
mesys   🔐 Hom reactions   Workite				and the second second	Service E Quotes
Inbound Email					Outbound Email
Heru =					Menu      ABook Curtada
From da.m	evyo@mbr-tHoo9				Tec dourseyo@etx-ti-009
	station (x 41-009 >				Ce:
Cc.	Sam Actin Sector				800
	ning E-mail sample				Subject: RE. Incoming E-real sample
Attachmenta: III	and this same				Attachments: 🔛
Company of the				-	
HI					Original Message
This is a test m	essage.				From dgurevyc [mailto/dgurevyc@mts-d-009] Sent.05/07/2007 13:23:21
Have a nice day	et.				Toubl
					Subject Incoming E-mail sample
					HI
					This is a test message
				-	Send Check Spatting Se
Suggestions	Envidencia Diman	Tobox and Altactor	ents Outbound Attach	Name -	
operation in the last of the local division of the local division of the last	Apply Apply	A Second Person		and the second se	
Name	Eategory Path	Description	Attachments		Active
	sebel/catt	some SR sample	п		N.
Test		still very lonh descrip	E- (¥)		<b>Y</b>
a partitude a second	pobel/cat1				W

Figure 39: Standard Response Library - Suggestions Tab

### **Media Routing Component**

### **Desktop Controls for Processing Siebel eMail**

The desktop controls used by agents to process Siebel eMails are similar to other e-mail processing programs. See a description of desktop controls for Siebel eMail processing below.

The *Gplus* Media Routing Component for Siebel may be used for routing any type of interactions, but as installed, it does not provide any agent interface for this. Siebel administrator customization is required. Please consult your Siebel administrator about desktop controls for particular types of interaction processing. Usually, Login, Logout, and Accept buttons are common for any interaction type, if they are not customized differently by your Siebel administrator.

### **Accepting E-Mail Messages**

When a new e-mail message arrives, the icon shown in Figure 40 blinks, and a notification message displays. To accept the new e-mail message, click the Accept button. The view for the new interaction displays.



Figure 40: Incoming E-Mail Icon

**Note:** An agent should not accept a new e-mail message until finished processing the current e-mail message.

### Sign Off from the Media Routing Component

To log out of the Adapter, click the Agent Sign Off button (see Figure 41 on page 76). This will log you out from all media types you are currently logged into.

### Working with E-Mail

Following are examples of how to work with e-mail. The basic controls are standard Siebel controls.

### Logging Into the Media Routing Component

To log into the Media Routing Component, first make yourself Ready, then select the E-mail button. Refer to the instructions for "Making Yourself Ready or Not Ready" on page 39. After you have logged into a media type, the toolbar changes back to how it appears in Figure 41 on page 76; only now, the Agent sign off button is available.

5	Þ	1		Ø		0	ŀ
opo es:	rtui	1 Ag	ent	sig	n	off	

Figure 41: Agent Sign Off Button

### **Responding to E-Mail Interactions**

1 Click Ready before you can accept any new interactions. You are notified of a new e-mail message.

Click the flashing icon shown in Figure 42 to accept the incoming e-mail message.

The Communications Tab displays and the customer information appears on the screen.



#### Figure 42: Incoming Genesys Interaction Icon

- 2. Click Reply to reply to the sender and type a response in the text area.
- **3.** If you need to add an attachment, click the Attach button and locate the document you want to attach.
- 4. Click Send to send the message. You can also save your message as a draft, or click Cancel to cancel the reply message.
- 5. Click Done.

Now you are ready to accept the next e-mail interaction.

THE REPORT OF A CONCERNENT OF LOSSEN AND				
	er75WECmd=Logh8SWEPL=185V	AE12411/0201146101		_
Edit Ven Norgate Query Tools Help	1		Saved Queries:	-
() 00 00 10 () () () () () () () () () () () () ()	· 이 이 가 한 산 이 ·Set	ie Emeil from devgelus 25@genesiste 🕎 🚳 👁	( a a . a . a .	10
Home Generys De Contacts To Opp	ortunities 🛒 Sales Orders 🧐	Service 📓 Quotes 💕 Administration	- Product	
il   Chat   Biteractora   WorkItem	and the second second second second		Contraction and a second second	
ncoming Message 🛛 🖬 🕬 🖬 🕅	Outgoing Message			
tanu * Query	Menu · Reply Reply	to All Forward		
From devgpks25@genetyslab.com	From		SR #:	
The state of the second second second	To		Deportunity:	
ubject: Sebel eMail TEST	0ct	Bot	Contact:	
Sabel eMail TEST	Subject:		Accounts	
Septiental (ES)	Categories		Greeting:	
	Body.		Closing	5.5
				<u>×</u>
				1
2				
ncoming Attachments 1-1 of	i			
en V Query				
Name Type Size				
Grighe Messay bit 850				-
	Attachments			0123
				11

Figure 43: Siebel eMail Interaction

The View for Siebel eMail is a default, standard Siebel view. In addition to standard buttons, the agent may use toolbar buttons to release and transfer a Siebel eMail interaction.

To transfer a Siebel eMail interaction:

• Click a Transfer button as shown in Figure 44.





#### Figure 44: Transfer Button

After you click the Transfer button, a popup window with agents list will appear. You may choose an agent to transfer to and click OK, or switch to

a queue transferring window by clicking the Transfer to Agent button on the popup window. Refer to Figure 35 and Figure 36 on page 71.

For instructions on how to pull an interaction or to cancel a route request to stop its processing, please consult with your Siebel Administrator, as this functionality is a required customer site customization.

### Working with Background E-Mail

To view background e-mails, click the Genesys view tab and select the Email Folders view. You will see a list of interactions as shown in Figure 45 on page 78. Select an interaction and click the 0pen button. The view with the selected e-mail interaction will open, and you can work with it as with ordinary e-mail.

The second secon	es Toom Belp		
Bad	🛋 🏠 💭 Search 😴 Favorities 🏈 👔	🛛 🕶 🖕 🕮 🗧 🔜	
dreas 🕤 http://gp/vm3/	calcenter_enu/start.swe?SWECmd=Logn85W	BPL=18_sn=239dMYmK8QYmQ4-DmR5X.hoY8NC25cv40	mtrzowyu - Die Links
The Edit View Navigate	Query Total Help		ORACLE
	1 3 5 1 5 M	Saved Queries;	- u a
[ ( ) warm [	「「「」」で、「「」」の	12 0 TO	0 11 14 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Home tienesys II	Contacts De Opportunities 📝 Sales D	inders 😤 Service 🔒 Quotes 🖆 Administration	Product C Accounts
Interactions   World		and the second se	- Contraction - a Contaminant
Interaction List	Manu * Quary Open		1-10/1
From To	Interaction Date	Subject	Cherry Contract
test	5/8/2007 05 02:17 PM	(no subject)	
> ettal test	5/9/2007 01:02:34 PM	(no subject)	
User	5/11/2007 04:09:13 PM	Sebel Sebel ettal TEST	
	effiail test		

Figure 45: Background Interactions

## **Logging Out**

To log out, after you have finished with a call, follow these steps:

**1.** Click the Not Ready button.

This will put you in the Not Ready mode, and no interactions will be sent to you.

2. Select a Not Ready reason code.

You see the estimated time of your logout if you are working in Predictive Dialing mode.

Your administrator can set the Logout control LogOutControl option in the .def file to true to enable this estimated logout time functionality in Predictive Dialing mode. For more information about the LogOutControl option, see the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide.

- **Note:** If you are assigned to take outbound calls, you cannot log out if Outbound Contact Server has already requested a dialer to make an outbound call.
- **3.** If you are in the DND (Do Not Disturb) state, please change your DND status before logging out.

Avoid logging out while in DND status. If you are in DND status and log out from Siebel CRM, when you log in to Siebel7 again you may still be in DND state but the Do Not Disturb button may indicate that you are not.

**Note:** Ask your system administrator or supervisor to recommend a procedure for cancelling DND if the button doesn't reflect your actual state.

### Automatic Log Out in Predictive Dialing Mode

Automatic log out occurs under the following circumstances:

- If your estimated time expires.
- If the outbound call is processed.

### In Case of Unsuccessful Log Out

If you receive an unsuccessful log out message, you are provided with a reason. In this scenario, contact your supervisor or system administrator and provide him or her with the reason you received.





Chapter



## **Administrator's Information**

This chapter includes information for administrator's of the G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM.

Chapter sections are as follows:

- Features for Administrators, page 81
- Logging In, page 82
- Accessing Communications Administration Functions, page 82
- Creating a Genesys Configuration, page 83
- Adding Agents to a Profile, page 86
- Editing Agent Information, page 88
- Configuration Synchronization Enhancement, page 98
- Genesys Agent's Employee ID Mapping, page 100
- E-Mail Routing, page 101
- Synchronization of E-mail Content Between Genesys Universal Contact Server and Siebel, page 102
- Genesys E-Mail Activity Creation, page 102
- Genesys Chat Activity Creation, page 103
- Starting the Configuration Synchronization Component, page 105
- Starting the Campaign Synchronization Component, page 107
- Regular and Compatibility Modes, page 115

## **Features for Administrators**

Here are the major features for administrators provided by the G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM:

• A single, consistent user interface for customer relationship management, telephony control, server administration, and contact center configuration.

- The support for a wide range of telephony hardware. Contact Genesys for a list of fully tested switch configurations.
- The support for typical inbound, outbound, and internal call scenarios. Sample configurations are provided to help each business to more rapidly produce the most appropriate configuration for its business needs.
- The ability to administer all agent and telephony configuration through Siebel Administration screens, which is discussed next.

## Logging In

The Administrator logs into Siebel Server in the same way the agent does (see "Logging Into the Siebel Server" on page 38).

## Accessing Communications Administration Functions

To access Communications Administration functions:

1. Using the Siebel Communications menu, select View > Site Map.

Administration functions will be accessed by selecting the links on the screen that appears. See Figure 46 on page 83.

Back       Image: Control of the provided cont of the provided contol of the provided contol of the provided c	le Edit Yew Favorites Icols Help			
Rel Edit Wew Navgate Query Tools Help   Service Nome Accounts Contacts <	) Back • 🔘 - 📄 😰 🐔 🔎 Search 🚽	Favorites @		
Note Edit Very Navigats Query Total Seved Queries:   Service None Accounts Contacts	dress 😸 http://gpvm4/calcenter_enu/start.sw	e75WECmd=Login&5WEPL=18_sn=t0EY8wfkGGv5n	nagyh-7QxVNylOh4931pa7mT36HzgV	_85WETS=118471147523485WEHo
Accounts Connect   Mome Accounts   Connect Connect   Agent General Profile   Actor Queues   Connect   Addre Elemis   Connect Status   All Charmel Items   Connect Status   Connect Status   All Charmel Items   Connect Status   All Charmel Items   Connect Status   All Charmel Items   Connect Status   Conne	the second se		the second s	
Atome Accounts Contacts Opportunities Solutions Solutions Quotes Administration - Product Appendique for a solution of the so	na was she burner and the se	No.		C 10
Home       Accounts       Image Opportunities       Image Sales Orders       Image Opportunities       Image Sales Orders       Image Opportunities       Image Opportunities         Administration - Communications       Appendix General Profile       Appendix General Profile       Appendix General Profile       Image Opportunities       Im				Saved Quenes:
Administration - Communications     Agent General Profile     Agent Contrastors     Configurators     Configurators     Configurators     All Active Agent Status     Advice Items     All Active Agent Status     Advice Items     Channel Status     Advice Items     Command Date Parameters     Command Date Parameters     Command Bate Parameters     Command Bate Parameters     Subcommands     All Command Configurations     Agents     Command Status     Advice Items     Agents     Command Parameters     Subcommands     All Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     All Event Logs     Event Handlers     Eve				
Agent General Profile     ACD Quiss     Configurations     Tolesets     Tolesets     Addve Items     Addve Item     Addve Items     Addve Items     Addve Item     Addve Item     Addve Items     Addve Item     Addve     Addve     Addve     Addve     Addve     Addve     Ad	Home Accounts E Contacts	Ha Opportunities V Sales Orders	Service 📓 Quotes 🖹	Administration - Product
I Done	ACD Queues     Configurations     Telepets     Alt Active Agent Status     Active Items     Channel Status     Alt Command Data Parameters     Subcommands     All Configurations     Agents     Commonds     All Configurations     Agents     Commands     Event Handlers     Event Handlers     Event Handlers     Event Response Parameters     Event Logs     Event Logs     Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     All Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     All Event Handlers     All Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     All Event Handlers     All Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     All Event Handlers     All Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     All Event Beyonse Parameters     All Event Handlers     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     All Event Handlers     Associated Event Logs     Event Handlers     Event Handle			

Figure 46: Siebel Public Sector Call Center, Home Tab

## **Creating a Genesys Configuration**

To configure the Gplus Voice Component by applying a Profile:

- **1.** Select All Configurations as shown in Figure 46. This action brings up a list of configurations.
- 2. Select Genesys. Figure 47 on page 84 shows the Genesys Configuration selected.

Edit New Favorites Looks Help				-
ack + 🔿 - 💽 😰 🐕 🔎 Search 💰	Caustin Ol Carl T			
		A THE REAL PROPERTY AND A THE PARTY AND A THE	pvm+ 💌 💽 Go	1
		wSnnagyh-7QxVMylOh4931pa7mT36HzgY_6/SWETS=11847114752346/SWEHo=g		_
Edit New Navigate Query Tools Help	o .		ORA	
		Saved Queries:	W	C
		Service Duotes Administration - Communications and Agent General Profile   All Active Agent Status   All Telesets   All Exter	the second se	. 1
onfigurations New New	Delete Query	1 s7 dl 7 Import Configuration	Export Configuration	P
Name	Comments			
Genesys Configuration	Voice collaboration			
CTI Test				_
Multichannel configuration A	Voice, email, and web collaboration			_
New				_
Reception configuration A	Voice			
gs_outb75				
gsg_WCB				
Parameters Frofiles Agents Con enu  New Query Name	www.ands Event Handlers	Active	No Records	[3
enu 🕶 New Query		Active	No Records	[5
enu 🕶 New Query		Active	No Records	(9

Figure 47: Siebel Public Sector Call Center, All Configurations

To apply a Profile to the Gplus Voice Component:

- 1. Click the Profiles tab in the lower frame in Figure 47.
- 2. Click New on the Profiles applet.
- 3. Select Add Communication Profile.
- 4. Select the Genesys Profile (see Figure 48).
- 5. Click OK as shown in Figure 48. The Genesys Profile, Gplus Voice driver, appears in the Profiles tab in the lower portion of the page (see Figure 49 on page 85).

ø	http://gpvm4 - A	dd Communication Profiles - Micro	soft Internet Explorer
	Query	Find Name	<b>Starting with</b> <case required=""></case>
	Name 🛆	Driver	Organization
	Dialogic CTI for San	Siebel CTI Connect	Default Organization
	Email driver for San	User-interactive Email	Default Organization
>	Genesys Profile	Genesys Gplus Voice	Default Organization
	Gplus OpenMedia	Gplus_OpenMedia	Default Organization
	Gplus VCB	Gplus_VCB	Default Organization
	Outb75 Voice	Outb75_Voice	Default Organization
	Siebel CTI Connect f	Siebel CTI Connect	Default Organization
	TaW for Summit	TaW	Default Organization
	Web driver for San I	User-interactive Web Collaboration	Default Organization
đ	javascript:void(0)		

Figure 48: Add Communication Profiles, Genesys Profile Selected

Edit View Pavorites Tools	Heip			
	earch 🌐 Favorites 😧 斗 🖟			-
		fkGGv5nnagyh-7QxVNylOh4931pa7mT30HzgY_8SWETS=11847114752348SWEHc=gpvm4		-
e Edit View Navigate Query Tr	State of the second		DRAC	
		Saved Queries:	*	C. G
figuration:				
the state of the s	ontacts 🎼 Opportunities 🐺 Sales Or			_
munications Drivers and Profiles   Al	Configurations   All Response Groups   All Ter	nplates   Agent General Profile   All Active Agent Status   All Telesets   All Extensions   A	l Commands	*
onfigurations New *	New Delete Query	t - 7 of 7 Import Configuration Export Co	nfiguration	<b>P</b>
Name	Comments .			
CTI Test				
New				
gs_outb75				
gsg_WCB				
Reception configuration A	Voice			
Genesys Configuration	Voice collaboration			
Multichannel configuration A	Voice, email, and web collaboration			

Figure 49: Genesys Profile, Gplus Voice Driver, in Profiles Tab

## Adding Agents to a Profile

At this point, agents can be associated with the Genesys Profile.

To start adding agents to a profile:

1. Click the Agents as shown in Figure 49. The Agents tab displays (see Figure 50).

Inters       Ptep://gown4/cakenter_enu/stat.swe75WECmd=Login&SWEPL=18_sm=t0EVBWR/sG6/Snnag/h-70/VM/d0h4931pa7m126HzgV_&SWETS=118471147523485WEHe=gown4         Inters       Inters       Saved Queries:         Inters       Inters       Saved Queries:         Inters       Inters       Saved Queries:         Inters       Inters       Sales Orders       Service       Quotes       Administration - Communications         Internations       Internations       Internations       Internations       Internations       Internations         Nome       Internations       Nerve       Nerve       Internations       Internations       Internation         Name       Configurations       Nerve       Nerve       Internations       Internations       Expo         Solutions       Nerve       Nerve       Nerve       Internations       Internations       Expo         Configurations       Nerve       Nerve       Solutions       Internations       Expo         Solutions       Nerve       Nerve       Solutions       Internations       Expo         Configurations       Nerve       Nerve       Solutions       Internations       Expo         Solutions       Nerve       Solutions       Nerve       Solutions       Intern	
Name Contracts   Name Contracts   Name Contracts   Configurations All Configurations   All Configurations All Exposes Groups   All Configurations All Exposes Groups   Anne Contracts   Configurations New   gs_outb75 gag_VCB   Reception configuration Vaice   Genesys Configuration Vaice	100
Image: Image	• 🔁 😡
Name       Constructs	ORAC
Home       Accounts       Importanties       Sales Orders       Sales Orders       Quetes       Administration - Communications         monunications Drivers and Profiles       All Configurations       All Response Groups       All Templates       Agent General Profile       Al Active Agent Status       All Telesets       All Extensions         Configurations       Menu       New       Deleta       Query       1 - 7 of 7       Import Configuration       Expo         Name       Consensity       Consensity       Configuration       Expo       Expo       Expo         CTI Test       Service       Genesys Configuration A       Voice       Expo       Expo         Genesys Configuration A       Voice       Genesys Configuration A       Voice       Expo         Matchannel configuration A       Voice, email, and web collaboration       Expo       Expo       Expo	¥
All Configurations   All Configurations   All Response Groups   All Templates   Agent General Profile   All Active Agent Status   All Telesets   All Extensions     Configurations   Menu          Menu	
Configurations     Menu •     New     Deleta     Query     1 - 7 of 7     Import Configuration     Expo       Name     Cumments </td <td></td>	
Name         Comments           CTI Test	All Commands
CTI Test New gs_outb75 gsg_vtD75 gsg_vtD8 Reception configuration A Voice Genesys Configuration A Voice collaboration Multichannel configuration A Voice, email, and web collaboration	t Configuration
New gs_outb75 gsg_VCB Reception configuration A Voice Genesys Configuration A Voice collaboration Multichannel configuration A Voice, email, and web collaboration	
gs_outb75 gsg_VCB Reception configuration A Voice Genesys Configuration A Voice collaboration Multichannel configuration A Voice, email, and web collaboration	
geg_WOB Reception configuration A Voice Genesiss Configuration Voice collaboration Multichannel configuration A Voice, email, and web collaboration	
Reception configuration A         Voice           Genesys Configuration         Voice collaboration           Multichannel configuration A         Voice, email, and web collaboration	
Genesys Configuration     Voice collaboration      Multichannel configuration A     Voice, email, and web collaboration	
Multichannel configuration A Voice, email, and web collaboration	
Parameters Profiles Agents Commands Event Handlers	
The second se	
Menu * New Query No Records Add by Re-	sponsibilities
Agent Last Name First Name Agent Login Password	

Figure 50: Agents Tab

To bring up available agents (from either the Genesys or Siebel database):

- 1. Click the down arrow and select Add Agents. The resulting dialog box shows all available agents that can be selected
- 2. Select the agents to add to the Genesys Profile for G*plus* Voice (see Figure 51).

Query		Find A	gent	👻 Starti	ng with CaseRequire	b l	Go 11 - 20 of	
Agent	Last Name	First Name	Agent Login	Password	Primary Position	Primary Organiza	stion	
G75_06	Lg75_06	Fg75_06	3106					
UNIVERSALQUEUE	Queue	Universal						
DEVO	dev0	dev0	4000					
DEV1	devt	dev1.						
DEV2	dev2	dev2						
DEV3	dev3	dev3						
DEV4	dev4	dev4						
DEV5	dev5	dev5						
DEV6	dev6	dev6						
DEV7	dev7	dev7						
-							ОК	Cancel
Done							OK Trusted sites	

Figure 51: Add Agents Dialog Box

**3.** Clicking 0K as shown in Figure 51.

The selected agents appear in the Agents tab in the lower portion of the page (see Figure 52).

e Edit View F						-10
	Fgvarites Ioals Help	- 14				
-		0 0.00				
tress 📳 http://gp/	wm4/calcenter_enu/start.swe?SWECmd=Lc	ogin85WEPL=18_sn=tOEY8HRGG	Smagyh-7QxWNyIOh4931pa7mT36HzgY_85	WET5=118471147523486WEHo=gpv		1
ile Edit View Na	avigate Query Tools Help			and the second second	ORA	CLE
				Saved Queries:		0.0
infiguration:						
Home 🔂 A	Accounts 🔢 Contacts 🔒 Oppo	irtunities 🐺 Sales Orders	😫 Service 📓 Quotes Admin	istration - Communications 🛛 👻		
ommunications Driver	rs and Profiles   All Configurations   A	All Response Groups   All Template	s   Agent General Profile   All Active Agen	k Status   All Telesets   All Extensi	ons   All Commands	*
Configuration	New Delete Q	juery	1	7 of 7 Import Configuration	Export Configuration	P
Name	Comme	ents )				
CTI Test						
Pácov						
gs_outb75						
gsg_VCB						
Reception config.	uration A Voice					
Genesys Configur	ration Voice co	R-B-restored				1
S Genesys configur	TURN TURN TURN OF	6aboration				
Multichannel conf	112010 U 12000	eaboration mail, and web collaboration				_
Parameters Menu • Ner	Frofiles Agents Commands Eve	mail, and web collaboration			Responsibilities	<b></b>
Parameters Menu + New Agent	riguration A Voice, et Profiles Agents Commands Eve W Delete Query Last Name	mail, and web collaboration nt Handlers First Name	Agent Login	1-4 of 4 Add by Password	Responsibilities	Ŧ
Multichannel conf Parameters Menu • New Agent > DEV1	Iguration A Voice, et Profiles Agents Commands Eve W Delete Query Last Name dev1	mail, and web collaboration nt Handlers First Name dev1	Agent Login		Responsibilities	
Multichannel conf Parameters Menu • Nev Agent > DEV1. DEV3	Inguration A Voice, et Profiles Agents Commands Eve W Delete Query Last Name dev1 dev3	mail, and web-collaboration nt Handlers First Name dev1 dev3	Agent Login		Responsibilities	Ŧ
Multichannel conf Parameters Meru • Ner Agent > DEV3 DEV3 DEV4	Inguration A Voice, et Profiles Agents Commands Eve M Delete Query Last Name dev1 dev3 dev4	mail, and web-collaboration nt Handlers First Name dev1 dev3 dev4	Agent Login		Responsibilities	<b></b>
Multichannel conf Parameters Menu • Nev Agent > DEV1. DEV3	Inguration A Voice, et Profiles Agents Commands Eve W Delete Query Last Name dev1 dev3	mail, and web-collaboration nt Handlers First Name dev1 dev3	Agent Login		Responsibilities	<b></b>
Multichannel conf Parameters Meru • Ner Agent > DEV3 DEV3 DEV4	Inguration A Voice, et Profiles Agents Commands Eve M Delete Query Last Name dev1 dev3 dev4	mail, and web-collaboration nt Handlers First Name dev1 dev3 dev4	Agent Login		Responsibilities	<b>T</b>

Figure 52: Agents Added to Genesys Configuration

4. Edit agent information, if necessary.

## **Editing Agent Information**

To assign a Login ID to an agent:

1. Select the Agent General Profile shown in Figure 52.

The Agent General Profile tab is displayed at the top of the page. See Figure 50 on page 86.

2. Edit agent login information.

Back	👔 🟠 🔎 Search 🍵 Favo	ites @					
2 and the second s	and the party of the local data was in the local data was in the local data was and the local data was in the local data was and the local data was	and the second se	EV8wfkGGvSnnagyh-7Qx/WyłOh	4931pa7mT36HzgY_85WET5=1	11947114752348/SWEHo=gpvm4	• 🖸 🙃	1
	ate Query Tools Help					ORA	_
1 1 1 1	A 2 8 3 8	đ		Sauce	d Queries:		
nfiguration: Genesys Co		<b>1</b>		Jure	u queines		
	unts BE Contacts	Opportunities 🔰 Sale	es Orders 🤗 Service	Quotes Administratio	on - Communications		
All reported to the other point		IN THIS PROPERTY OF THE PACE	the second s	And the second se	s   All Telesets   All Extensions	All Commands	
Agent General F	Profile Menu Q	arry		And in case of the local distance	No. of Concession, Name	1+1011	15
Agent	A REAL PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF THE OWNER.						
Aupenit	Agent Login	Password	First Name	Last Name	Primary Configuration		
	Agent Login 1234	Password	First Name dev1	Last Name devi	Primary Configuration Genesys Configuration		
and the second s	Contraction of the second s	Password					
Configurations	1234	Password					
Configurations	1234				Genesys Conhguration		

Figure 53: Agent General Profile

To assign the selected agent to a Siebel Teleset, which is the equivalent of Genesys Agent Place:

1. Click the Telesets tab shown in Figure 53.

The Telesets tab displays, see Figure 54 on page 89.

apunt I 🗗 🖗 ORA	-
ORA	-
ORA	-
	CL
¥	
	9
-	
stensions   Al Commany	5 *
1 - 1 of 1	P
figuration	
guration	
han Records	
6	1 - 1 of 1 iguration

Figure 54: Agent General Profile, Telesets Tab

- **2.** Click the Query button in the Telesets tab. The dialog box is displayed.
- 3. Click the down arrow and select Telesets.

The telesets dialog box displays the available telesets for selection and assignment to the agent. See Figure 52 on page 87.

Query	Find Teleset	Starting with Case Required>	Go 1-9 of 9
Teleset A	Comments		
1234-1001			
outb_3100			
outb_3101			
outb_3102			
outb_3103			
outb_3104			
outb_3105			
outb_3106			
vcb_4000			
			OK Cancel

Figure 55: Add Telesets, Query Results

4. Click OK.

In the dialog box shown in Figure 55, the teleset is assigned to the agent (see Figure 56 on page 90).



Figure 56: Teleset Assigned to Agent

**Note:** All information entered is updated in the Siebel database and synchronized with the Genesys Configuration database.

The same general procedure for assigning agents to telesets also applies to assigning agents to ACD queues.

### **Configuring the Not Ready Command**

The Not Ready Device command can display as a button on the Siebel Communications Toolbar for the following Adapter Components: Voice, Siebel E-mail, and Multimedia. This button displays based on configuration of the .def file for the following two Define Switch Type and define T-Server Host Port. If the switch does not support this functionality, the button will not be available. This feature allows the agent to change the work mode by clicking the Not Ready button.

This functionality is provided by the sample configuration and defined by the GenComm\_universal.def file. The use of the existing component in the Siebel CRM Business Component List Of Values is used to define the set of allowed work modes and reason codes to be sent with Device command Not Ready.

When an agent makes himself Not Ready, the Siebel CRM pop-up Applet Transfer Multiple LOV Popup Applet shows the popup window with the set of possible values for AgentWorkMode and ReasonCode for AgentWorkMode. An agent selects the appropriate values from the list of options and then select OK.

The system administrator must set the possible values for AgentWorkMode and ReasonCode parameters in Siebel CRM.

The agent can select more than one value for AgentWorkMode and more than one value for ReasonCode parameters in the popup view. In this case only one value for both AgentWorkMode and ReasonCode will be accepted by the Adapter, but it cannot be predicted which values will be chosen.

If any value for the ReasonCode parameter is not chosen when the pop-up window displays, then the default value (-1) will be used for the Reason Code.

If any value for the ReasonCode parameters is not chosen on the pop-up view, then the Adapter looks for the value defined by the Service:AgentWorkMode parameter. If the value of this parameter is defined, the Adapter uses it, otherwise the default value (0, AgentWorkModeUnknown) is used as the AgentWorkMode value. See the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide for more information about this feature.

# Synchronizing Siebel Extensions and ACD Queues with Genesys Configuration

The association between a Siebel Communications Configuration and its corresponding switches is created through the Communications Driver Profiles, which are included in the Siebel Configuration.

All G*plus* components, except Synchronization Servers, use Communications Driver Profiles.

The Communications Driver Profiles allow you to override the Siebel Configuration information.

In the Siebel view, the Profile Parameters Overrides area displays the information that was changed based on the Communications Driver Profiles you created.

Communications Driver Profiles of the Genesys Voice Component include the following options for configuring the necessary Siebel information for the association:

- Driver:TServerAppName
- DriverAlias

**Note:** The DriverAlias option should have an @ symbol as the first symbol of the value string.

The DriverAlias option is set to be used for association of DNs in telesets with a particular switch in Genesys Configuration Manager through the Communications Driver Profile. For example, extension 7001@Switch1 in the teleset means extension 7001 is associated with a switch referenced by the parameter Driver:TServerAppName in the Profile, where DriverAlias = "@Switch1".

The Siebel Extensions, ACD Queues, and Agent Logins are synchronized in the Genesys Configuration Management Environment (CME) under the Switch that is described by its corresponding Siebel Communications Server Driver parameter for Genesys Voice (Channel Type = Voice):

- Driver: TServerAppName the name of the T-Server application in the Genesys Configuration Manager.
- Note: Customers who used previous versions of the Adapter and do *not* require the new functionality of the Genesys Voice Component (see the "Voice" section under "New in This Release (7.5)" in Chapter 4 "Administrator's Information"), may still use the ServerHost and ServerPort parameters described below. Do *not* change the TServerAppName = "CHANGE\_ME" parameter in this case. If TServerAppName is defined, then ServerHost and ServerPort parameters are ignored.

- Driver:ServerHost the host name of the machine where T-Server is running
- Driver:ServerPort the port number for T-Server in decimal form.

Make sure that values of these Driver parameters are unique in your Genesys CME. Do not use more then one T-Server application with same Host/Port combination.

**Note:** The Siebel Extensions and ACD Queues which correspond to the Genesys Open Media configuration only (those that do *not* correspond to the Genesys Voice configuration) are not synchronized with the Genesys environment.

# The Siebel Extensions and ACD Queues Export/Synchronization Rule

A Siebel Configuration may include multiple Adapter Profiles and can therefore be associated with multiple switches. The following list provides the guidelines of the possible combinations:

An agent can be associated with:

- One or more Telesets
- Multiple Adapter Profiles
- Multiple Switches (through Adapter Profiles)

An agent's Teleset can be associated with:

Multiple Extensions

You must configure the option DriverAlias to associate ACD Queues and Extensions with the proper switches. Use the following syntax to configure the Siebel Extensions and ACD Queues:

```
full_extension_name = <actual_extension_name>[driver_alias]
```

where:

- actual\_extension\_name is a string representing the actual extension or ACD Queue value that will be used in any communication interactions.
- driver\_alias = @<any\_string>

The Siebel Extensions/ACD Queues will be exported into and synchronized with the Configuration Layer based on the information provided in the syntax above. When creating this configuration syntax, you must follow these rules.

An actual\_extension\_name will be exported into and synchronized with Configuration Manager under the Switch that is described by its corresponding:

• Driver:TServerAppName

• DriverAlias option of the Adapter Profile has the same value as driver\_alias substring from the full Extension/ACD Queue name (full\_extension\_name).

See Figure 57 on page 94 for an illustration of the following example:

A Siebel Agent, Agent01, is included in the Siebel configuration Conf01. The Siebel configuration Conf01, has two Adapter Profiles: Prof01 and Prof02. The Adapter Profile, Prof01, includes the switch Switch01. The Adapter Profile, Prof02, includes the switch Switch02. In this example, the following options define the associated switch for the Siebel configuration Conf01:

For Switch01 in the Prof01:

```
Driver:TServerAppName = "TServer1"
DriverAlias = "@v01"
```

For Switch02 in the Prof02:

```
Driver:TServerAppName = "TServer2"
DriverAlias = "@v02"
```



Figure 57: Example of Siebel Export/Synchronization with Genesys

If the agent named Agent01 has a Teleset Place01 that contains three Extensions: 1000@v01, 2000@v02, and 3000.

And the agent also has three ACD Queues: 4000@v01, 5000@v02, and 6000.

Then, only the following actual\_extension\_names of the Extensions and ACD Queues described above will be exported into and synchronized with Configuration Manager:

under Switch01: 1000, 4000 under Switch02: 2000, 5000

Notice that Extension 3000 and ACD Queue 6000 will not be exported, because Conf01 does not have an Adapter Profile with an empty value of the DriverAlias option.

For example: Extension 3000 should be formatted:

- 3000@v01 (to associate it with Adapter Profile01) or
- 3000@v02 (to associate it with Adapter Profile02).

Normally the Configuration Synchronization Component exports 'A' extensions (Siebel) as ACD Positions (Genesys) and 'S' extensions (Siebel) as Extensions (Genesys). However, in the case when teleset has no 'A' extensions (Siebel), it will be exported as ACD Position (Genesys) by default. This conversion has been implemented because some types of switches require at least one ACD Position for each Agent Place in the Genesys environment. The user property ConvertExt2ACD allows disabling of this conversion. Change the value of ConvertExt2ACD to false if your environment does not have such switches. Please see "Setting Default Field Values for Designated Genesys Objects" on page 98 for more information.

# Synchronizing a Siebel Employee/Agent with Genesys Configuration Environment

Before exporting an agent from Siebel to Genesys (by associating the agent with a Communications Configuration, which is based on the Voice Component), make sure that the agent belongs to the correct Organization in the Siebel environment. You can check or change the assignment using the User Administration > Employees screen of the Siebel Web Client. To export the agent successfully, the agent's Organization must be mapped to a Genesys Tenant in the options of the Configuration Synchronization Component application in the Genesys Configuration Layer.

After exporting an agent whose Organization in Siebel is mapped to a Tenant in Genesys, if you want to reassign the agent to a different Siebel Organization, do not change the agent's Organization using the User Administration > Employees screen right away. Instead, follow these steps in the Siebel Web Client:

- **1.** Delete the agent from all Communications Configurations, which are based on the Voice Component.
- 2. Go to the User Administration > Employees screen and assign the agent to a different Organization. Make sure that the new Organization is mapped to a Genesys Tenant in the options of the Configuration Synchronization Component application in the Genesys Configuration Layer.

**3.** Assign the agent back to the Communications Configurations described in Step 1.

In order for Siebel Agents' Skill and Skill Item names to be compliant with the Genesys Universal Router, make sure that these names in Siebel meet the following requirements:

- 1. A name can include any of the following characters:
  - Alphanumeric characters
  - Hyphens ( )
  - Spaces
  - Underscores ( \_ )
- 2. A name cannot begin with a number.
- **Note:** The user is responsible for any voluntary changes made to the data in Configuration Manager folders where G*plus* Adapter for Siebel CRM Configuration Synchronization Component stores agent data. Such changes may cause data synchronization scenarios to fail, and, as a result, there might be discrepancies between configuration data in Siebel and Genesys applications.

### **Siebel Skill Mapping**

When you create an agent skill, follow the standards in Table 2 to establish your skill mapping. For additional information, see Siebel documentation.

Siebel Skill Elements	Genesys Mapping Substrings
Skill item separator	_SI_
dash (- )	_D_
space ()	_S_
High Char 1	_HC1_
High Char 2	_HC2_
High Char 3	_HC3_
High Char 4	_HC4_
High Char 5	_HC5_
High Char 6	_HC6_

 Table 2: Siebel Skill Mapping

### Table 2: Siebel Skill Mapping (Continued)

Siebel Skill Elements	Genesys Mapping Substrings
High Char 7	_HC7_
High Char 8	_HC8_
Low Char1	_LC1_
Low Char2	_LC2_
Low Char3	_LC3
Low Char4	_LC4_
Low Char5	_LC5_
Low Char6	_LC6_
Low Char7	_LC7_
Low Char8	_LC8_
High Number 1	_HN1_
High Number 2	_HN2_
High Number 3	_HN3_
High Number 4	_HN4_
High Number 5	_HN5_
High Number 6	_HN6_
High Number 7	_HN7_
High Number 8	_HN8_
Low Number 1	_LN1_
Low Number 2	_LN2_
Low Number 3	_LN3_
Low Number 4	_LN4_

Siebel Skill Elements	Genesys Mapping Substrings
Low Number 5	_LN5_
Low Number 6	_LN6_
Low Number 7	_LN7_
Low Number 8	_LN8_

#### Table 2: Siebel Skill Mapping (Continued)

A Siebel Employee's Assignment Skill consists of three items:

- Skill
- Skill Item
- Skill Item Expertise

When a Siebel Employee is exported and synchronized into Configuration Manager, information about the agent's skills is also exported into Siebel. The table below shows how the information is transferred from the Siebel environment into the Genesys Configuration Environment. Note in particular:

- An agent's Skill and Skill Items are concatenated in one string with a "\_SI\_" substring as the separator. The resulting string is exported into the Skills folder of Genesys Configuration Environment.
- An agent's Siebel Skill Item corresponds to the Genesys Skill Level in the Genesys Configuration Environment as described below:

Siebel Skill Item Expertise	Genesys Agent Skill Level
Novice	1
Intermediate	2
Expert	3

## Configuration Synchronization Enhancement

### Setting Default Field Values for Designated Genesys Objects

The Configuration Synchronization component allows customers to define and modify the fields that will be synchronized (exported) from Siebel to Genesys. Configuration Synchronization exposes all Configuration Manager (CME) properties for the Genesys objects that are designated to be synchronized through the G*plus* Adapter integration. This allows a customer to specify which fields will be synchronized.

If no Siebel field exists for a specific CME field or property, then the G*plus* Adapter does not synchronize this field.

The example below describes how to set up default values to be assigned to the specified fields of the Genesys objects during synchronization process. For the following example, assume that it is necessary to assign the following default values to selected fields of the Agent Login and DN Genesys objects during export from Siebel to Genesys:

```
Agent Login's

wrap-up-time = 30;

Switch-specific Type = 5;

Use Override = False;

DN's

Switch-specific Type = 5;

State Enabled = False;

Route Type = Label.
```

To do this, it is necessary to change the Siebel repository using the Siebel Tools application.

After importing the GenesysConfigSynchronization.sif file (as described in the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide, in Chapter 3, "Configuration and Installation of the Configuration Synchronization Component", it is possible to set up the default values provided above. Use the following steps:

- 1. In Siebel Tools, navigate to Object Explorer > Types. Then go to Siebel Objects\Business Service folder.
- 2. Select the Genesys Config Synchronization record on the Business Services applet.
- 3. With the Genesys Config Synchronization Business Service selected, navigate to Business Service User Prop folder. To make this folder visible in Object Explorer, select it in the Object Explorer tab of Development Tools Options (View > Options).
- 4. The Business Service User Props applet displays a number of properties with the names resembling the names of corresponding Genesys fields.
- 5. Set the default values for the Business Service User Properties as shown below:

```
DefaultAgentLoginWrapupTime (Name) = 30 (Value);
DefaultAgentLoginSwitchSpecificType = 5;
DefaultAgentLoginUseOverride = 1;
DefaultDnSwitchSpecificType = 5;
```

```
DefaultDnState = 2;
DefaultDnRouteType = 2.
```

6. Compile a new Siebel Repository File for Locked projects and deploy it in Siebel server, or, if you have not yet finished with the deployment, continue with the deployment of the Configuration Synchronization Component.

## **Genesys Agent's Employee ID Mapping**

### **Changing the Default Mapping**

By default the Siebel Agent Login field maps to the Genesys agent's Employee ID. This is required for Genesys Open Media functionality.

For customers who do not use Genesys Open Media, the Configuration Synchronization Component allows you to select which Siebel field to map to the Genesys Employee ID field of the exported agent. The following Siebel fields could be synchronized with the Genesys agent Employee ID field:

- Agent Login (default)
- Row ID
- . User ID
- <custom field>

The following example describes how to map these fields (Row ID, User ID, or <custom field>) to the Genesys Employee ID field of the exported agents. To perform this task, it is necessary to change the Siebel repository using Siebel Tools application.

After importing the GenesysConfigSynchronization.sif file (as described in the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide, in Chapter 3, "Configuration and Installation of the Configuration Synchronization Component", it is possible to change the default mapping of the Genesys Employee ID, as follows:

- 1. In Siebel Tools, navigate to Object Explorer > Types. Then go to the Siebel Objects\Integration Object folder.
- 2. Select the Genesys Agent record on the Integration Objects applet.
- 3. With the Genesys Agent Integration Object selected, navigate to the Integration Component folder. To make the Integration Component folder visible in Object Explorer, select it in Object Explorer tab of Development Tools Options (View > Options).
- 4. Select the Genesys Users / Organizations record on Integration Components applet.
- 5. With Genesys Users / Organizations Integration Component selected, navigate to Integration Component Field folder.
- 6. The Integration Component Fields applet displays a number of fields. Select the record with the Name = EmployeeId.

- 7. By default for this record, External Name = AgentLoginId. This maps the Genesys agent's Employee ID to the Siebel Agent Login.
- 8. Set External Name = SiebelEmplRowId. This maps the Genesys agent's Employee ID to the Siebel employee's Row ID, or

Set External Name = EmployeeID. This maps the Genesys agent's Employee ID to the Siebel employee's User ID, or

Set External Name = <custom field>. This maps the Genesys agent's Employee ID to the Siebel employee's <custom field>.

**9.** Compile the new Siebel Repository File for Locked projects and deploy it in Siebel server, or if you have not yet finished the deployment, continue with the deployment of the Configuration Synchronization Component.

## **E-Mail Routing**

Gplus Adapter for Siebel CRM enables Genesys routing of Siebel eMail:

- 1. Genesys Universal Router queues inbound Siebel eMails:
  - E-mails are received from the corporate e-mail server and processed via Siebel eMail Response workflows.
  - E-mails are passed to Siebel Smart Answer for context analysis and auto response, if appropriate; otherwise e-mail is passed to Genesys for routing.
  - Genesys Universal Router Business Service attaches the Siebel eMail activity ID and other key data to a component that issues a route request to Genesys Universal Queue.
- **2.** Genesys Universal Routing Server (URS) pushes the e-mails to Siebel agents via the Siebel Communications Toolbar's e-mail channel.
  - Routing strategies in URS identify a target agent.
  - Interaction Server sends an invitation event to an agent.
  - Siebel delivers the e-mail. The interaction is pushed to the agent via the *Gplus* Adapter.
  - The agent sees the e-mail message in her Incoming Message panel.
- 3. Siebel eMail Response processes the e-mail.
  - Siebel event handlers use the passed activity ID to lookup and pop the appropriate Siebel eMail view for processing the agent's reply processing.
  - Siebel outbound workflow processes send the reply out to the corporate e-mail server when the agent is done.
- 4. The Gplus Adapter for Siebel CRM updates interaction status in Genesys.

## Synchronization of E-mail Content Between Genesys Universal Contact Server and Siebel

The Adapter assumes that Genesys inbound e-mails are immutable. Therefore, inbound e-mails are imported once. On other hand, outbound e-mails can be changed externally, when they are not handled by the Adapter. Therefore, after they are delivered to the Siebel agent, the Adapter will import or update the content of the e-mail into Siebel.

However, due to system limitation on the size of the Email Body field of the Action record in Siebel, other applications (if any are involved) should take care to keep the size of the outbound e-mail body below 16,008 bytes. Please note that it is still possible to receive inbound e-mails with a body size greater then this limit. In such a case, the Adapter will preserve the unmodified body as an attachment and then automatically truncate the body to fit within the 16,008 byte limit.

## **Genesys E-Mail Activity Creation**

One Siebel Action (activity) record corresponds to one e-mail interaction. An Activity is created when an interaction is delivered for the first time to the Siebel desktop. Activity status is changed to reflect the current state of handling by an agent.

Inbound e-mails are considered as immutable, and the content of the e-mail (address fields, body, and attachments) is imported only once.

Outbound e-mail can be changed externally, while not be handled by Siebel agents. Therefore, content is imported each time an interaction is delivered to

an agent. The diagram below in Figure 58 shows changes in the activity status for e-mail:



Figure 58: Genesys E-mail Activity Status Diagram

## **Genesys Chat Activity Creation**

A Chat activity is created on event OpenMediaInvited in status Requested. Upon accepting the chat (upon the first ChatNewParty event, which indicates that a chat session is online), status is changed to In Progress. Completion of the chat changes the status to Completed. The entire chat transcript is stored in a

custom table CX\_GEN\_ACT\_CHAT. The diagram below in Figure 59 shows changes in the activity status for chat:



Figure 59: Genesys Chat Activity Status Diagram

### **Configuring a Chat Transcript**

The Genesys Multimedia Solution is able to send a chat transcript to a customer using the Chat Transcript building block in the Genesys Router Designer. This can be accomplished and configured in different ways:

- The Chat transcript is sent to the customer if the agent selects the Send Transcript check box. In this case, the decision to send or not to send is made by the agent.
  - Before Mark Done, the agent selects the Send Transcript check box, and the Adapter sets the interaction attribute Send\_Chat\_Transcript to Y.

- Create a routing strategy which checks this attribute, and when it is Y, invokes the Chat Transcript building block.
- Change the default value of the Queue parameter of the MarkDoneChat command in the Siebel CTI configuration from \_\_STOP\_\_ to queue, where the designed strategy is loaded.
- The Chat transcript is always sent to the customer regardless of whether the Send Transcript check box is selected.
  - Create a routing strategy which will unconditionally invoke the Chat Transcript building block.
  - Change the default value of the Queue parameter of the MarkDoneChat command in the Siebel CTI configuration from \_\_STOP\_\_ to the name of the Multimedia queue, where the designed strategy is loaded.
- Disabled, whereby the chat transcript is never sent to the customer. This is the default behavior.
  - In this case, the MarkDoneChat command stops interaction processing. Alternatively, if some post processing for chat is required, the interaction is placed in the Multimedia queue for post processing, but post processing does not invoke the Chat Transcript building block.

## Starting the Configuration Synchronization Component

After the Configuration Synchronization Component has been deployed, it must always be running to ensure that the Genesys environment stays up-todate with the Siebel environment. Running the Component constantly will prevent error messages in the Siebel Web Client and will guarantee that the Genesys environment reflects the latest configuration updates made in the Siebel environment.

The Configuration Synchronization Component can be started from the command line. The name of the component is listed below:

- GplusConfSynch.exe for Windows
- GplusConfSynch for UNIX.

The component supports the following command line options:

```
-host <host> -port <port> -app <application> [ -clean_batch |
-batch ]
```

where:

- host is the name of the host where the Genesys Configuration Server is running.
- port is the port of the Genesys Configuration Server.
- application is the name of the Configuration Synchronization Component application.

The -batch option should be used to synchronize Siebel and Genesys agent data when the Configuration Synchronization Component is started for the first time. To remove *all* agent data from the Configuration Synchronization Component folders in Configuration Manager and then export agent data from Siebel, use -clean\_batch.

If you are using Windows, you can also start the Configuration Synchronization Component from the Start menu by going to Programs > Genesys Solutions > Gplus Adapter for Siebel CRM and selecting the component's shortcut (the shortcut has the same name as the Configuration Synchronization Component application object). This will start the component with the default command line options (without -batch and -clean\_batch options).

**Note:** Before starting the Configuration Synchronization Component with either -batch or -clean\_batch options, you should make sure that all of the latest changes you made in the Siebel Web Client have been saved in the Siebel database. Usually, this can be done by switching to a view different than the one you used to make the last modification.

For -batch and -clean\_batch options to work correctly, different Siebel users should create Configuration Manager objects of the same type under the same Configuration Manager folder. When you use either -batch or -clean\_batch options, the Configuration Synchronization Component uses folder mapping for the Siebel user, specified by the username option in the Siebel section of the Configuration Synchronization Component application.

**Note:** You can use Genesys Management Layer, and specifically the Solution Control Interface, to start or stop or switch between primary and backup Configuration Synchronization Components. If you want to do this, make sure that the Command Line Arguments in the application Start Info tab do not include the -service argument.

Note: For the Configuration Synchronization component to work correctly, the following conditions must be met:
1. Profiles within one Communication Configuration can belong to different Siebel Organizations, as long as these Organizations are mapped to different Genesys Tenants.
2. An agent and his/her Communication Configuration Profiles must belong to the same Siebel Organization.
3. A Teleset must not be assigned to agents from different Siebel Organizations.

4. The same extension must not be used in more than one Teleset.

# Siebel Extension, ACD Queue, and Agent Login Synchronization

The Siebel Extensions, ACD Queues, and Agent Logins are synchronized in the Genesys Configuration Management Environment (CME) under the Switch that is described by its corresponding Siebel Communications Server Driver parameter for Genesys Voice (Channel Type = Voice):

- Driver: TServerAppName the name of the T-Server application in the Genesys Configuration Manager.
- Note: Customers who used previous versions of the Adapter and do not require the new functionality of the Genesys Voice Component (see the "Voice" section under "New in This Release (7.5)" in Chapter 4 "Administrator's Information"), may still use the ServerHost and ServerPort parameters described below. Do not change the TServerAppName = "CHANGE\_ME" parameter in this case. If TServerAppName is defined, then ServerHost and ServerPort parameters are ignored.
- Driver:ServerHost the host name of the machine where T-Server is running
- Driver:ServerPort the port number for T-Server in decimal form.

Make sure that values of these Driver parameters are unique in your Genesys CME. Do not use more then one T-Server application with same Host/Port combination.

**Note:** The Siebel Extensions and ACD Queues which correspond to the Genesys Open Media configuration only (those that do *not* correspond to the Genesys Voice configuration) are not synchronized with the Genesys environment.

## Starting the Campaign Synchronization Component

After the Campaign Synchronization Component has been deployed, it must always be running to ensure that the Genesys environment stays up-to-date with the Siebel environment. Constantly running this component ensures that the Genesys environment reflects the latest configuration updates made in the Siebel environment.

The Campaign Synchronization Component can be started from the command line. The name of the component is:

• GplusCampSynch.exe for Windows

• GplusCampSynch for UNIX

This component supports the following command line options: -host <host> -port <port> -app <application> [ -batch] where:

- host is the name of the host where the Genesys Configuration Server is running.
- port is the port of the Genesys Configuration Server.
- application is the name of the Campaign Synchronization Component application.

The -batch option should be used to synchronize Call Results of campaigns which have been already executed but have not been yet synchronized their Call Results.

If you are using Windows, you can also start the Campaign Synchronization Component from the Start menu by going to Programs > Genesys Solutions > Gplus Adapter for Siebel CRM and selecting the component's shortcut (which has the same name as the Campaign Synchronization Component application object). This will start the component with the default command line options.

**Note:** You can use Genesys Management Layer, and specifically the Solution Control Interface, to start or stop or switch between primary and backup Campaign Synchronization Components. If you want to do this, make sure that the Command Line Arguments in the application Start Info tab do not include the -service argument.

### **Exporting Siebel Campaigns to Genesys**

You specify the mapping between Genesys and Siebel objects by applying the options of the Campaign Synchronization Component application object. For more information, see the *G*plus *Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide*.

#### **Conditions and Requirements**

Before you export a Siebel campaign from Siebel to Genesys, make sure that it meets all of the following conditions:

- The Siebel Organization (7.5.3, 7.7/7.8/8.0) to which the campaign belongs, is mapped to a Genesys Tenant.
- The Siebel User Name of the person who created the campaign is mapped to the corresponding application options of the G*plus* Campaign Synchronization Component, including: Database Access Point, Table Access Folder, Calling List Folder, and Campaign Folder.
- The Team field of the campaign and all its lists should include the original Siebel Administrator position.
- The Team field of the campaign and all its lists should include as a primary record the primary position(s) of users who may update information related to the campaign synchronization process.
- If you use Compatibility mode, make sure that all of these conditions are valid for each campaign in a campaign's parent-child hierarchy. Information about Compatibility mode is provided below, in the section titled "Compatibility Mode" on page 124.
- The list or segment name should not be the same as the campaign name to which the list or segment belongs.
- All contact/prospects of the campaign must include in the "Contact Team" field (the access list) as a primary record the primary positions of users who update "Do Not Call" properties of these contact/prospects. Otherwise, "Do Not Call" properties may not be synchronized. For Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0 these contact/prospects must additionally include the position of the Siebel Administrator.

**Note:** Synchronization of the "Do Not Call" property does not include deletions from the Genesys Outbound Contact Server table. You cannot delete information from the OCS Do Not Call table.

- All segments/lists of exported campaigns must have status equal to Active or In Progress.
- The Siebel user login used for <username> in the application option of the Adapter should have the same primary position (the record in the Team field) as one of the Siebel users who creates Siebel campaigns.
- All User logins related to Campaign Synchronization should have the same record (the position) to be set as a primary in the Position field (Employees view) and the Contact Team field (Users view).
- For the campaign to be exported in Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0 environments, in the campaign execution options:
  - The Campaign Member Ownership field should be set to Yes -Manually
  - The Default Organization Owner field must contain the Siebel Organization, which is the same Organization as the Organization mapped to the Tenant in the application option
  - The Default Position Owner field must contain the position that is the same as the Primary Position of the Siebel User who is performing the export.

For more information, see also the *G*plus *Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide*.

**Note:** If you export a campaign from the Siebel to the Genesys environment and the Genesys environment already has a campaign definition with the same name, the Campaign Synchronization Component will overwrite the existing Genesys campaign definition with the information from the exported campaign. Therefore, if you export two campaigns with the same name from the Siebel to the Genesys environment, the Genesys campaign definition for the first exported campaign will be overwritten by the data for the second exported campaign, and the first campaign in the Siebel environment will be out-of-sync with the data for this campaign in the Genesys environment. To avoid this problem, do not export two or more Siebel campaigns with the same name to the Genesys environment.

### **Synchronization Procedures**

To import a Siebel campaign to the Genesys environment, you must:

- Assign the Genesys Campaign Export position to the campaign.
- Add Agent (or Place) Groups to the Genesys Campaign object, to complete the Genesys Campaign object configuration.

To assign the Genesys Campaign Export position to the campaign:

- 1. From the Site Map, select Campaign Administration > Campaigns (7.5.3) or Campaign Management > Campaign List (7.7/7.8/8.0).
- **2.** Select the campaign to import to the Genesys environment and navigate to the Team applet for this campaign.
- **3.** Assign the Genesys Campaign Export position to the campaign using the Team applet.
- **Note:** In Compatibility mode, when importing a parent-child hierarchy of Siebel campaigns to the Genesys environment, the Genesys Campaign Export position can be assigned either to a Siebel parent campaign or to one of its children. The result of this action is that the Campaign Synchronization Component will automatically assign the position to the parent campaign and all its children and export this parent-child campaign structure to Genesys for processing.

The campaign is now imported to Genesys.

Campaign, Calling List, and Table Access objects are automatically created in the Genesys Configuration Layer when you export a Siebel campaign to Genesys. However, you must also manually perform the following procedures to complete the configuration:

1. Create the Agent (or Place) Group(s) in Genesys Configuration Manager

- 2. Configure the Agent (or Place) Group, being sure to add the already exported Agent(s) or Place(s) to the Group in Genesys Configuration Manager
- **3.** Include the created Group in the campaign object and complete the campaign configuration as required.

See Genesys Outbound Contact Server (OCS) documentation for details of this configuration process.

When these steps are completed, the campaign is fully configured, and OCS can execute the exported campaign in the Genesys environment.

Table 3 describes objects created by the component during the campaign synchronization process.

Object	Description
Campaign Configuration Manager Object	One Genesys Configuration Manager Campaign object is created for the imported campaign.
	<ul> <li>The object has the same name as the corresponding Siebel Campaign.</li> <li>The object is created under a Campaigns subfolder for the Siebel</li> </ul>
	Call Center user who created the campaign.
	• The Campaign folder assignment is specified within the CampaignFolders section of the Campaign Synchronization Component application object.
Calling List Configuration Manager Object(s)	One Genesys Configuration Manager Calling List object is created for every Siebel Segment or List from the imported campaign.
	• The object has the name created as a concatenation of the corresponding Siebel segment/list name and the corresponding campaign name.
	• The object is created under a Calling Lists subfolder for the Siebel Call Center user who created the campaign.
	• The Calling List folder assignment is specified within the CallingListFolders section of the Campaign Synchronization Component application object.

### Table 3: Campaign Synchronization Process Objects

Object	Description
Table Access Configuration Manager Object(s)	<ul> <li>One Genesys Configuration Manager Table Access object is created for every Siebel segment or list from the imported campaign.</li> <li>The object has the name created as a concatenation of the corresponding Siebel segment/list name and the corresponding campaign name.</li> <li>The object is created under a Table Access subfolder for the Siebel Call Center user who created the campaign.</li> <li>The Table Access folder assignment is specified within the TableAccessFolders section of the Campaign Synchronization Component application object.</li> </ul>
Calling List Table(s) and Indexes in the OCS database	<ul> <li>One Calling List table with contact records and related indexes are created for every Siebel segment or list from the imported campaign.</li> <li>The table has a name in the format CLT XXXX, where XXXX stands for a unique table ID.</li> <li>The table is created in the OCS database according to the Database Access Point designation for the Siebel Call Center user who created the campaign.</li> <li>The Database Access Point assignment is specified within the "DatabaseAccessPoints" section of the Campaign Synchronization Component application object.</li> </ul>

### Table 3: Campaign Synchronization Process Objects (Continued)

As long as the imported Campaign has the Genesys Campaign Export position assigned, the Campaign Synchronization Component will propagate changes made to the Campaign definition in the Siebel environment to the Genesys environment.

# **Deleting Siebel Campaigns from Genesys**

To delete a Siebel Campaign from the Genesys environment:

- 1. From the Site Map, select Campaign Administration > Campaigns.
- **2.** In the Campaigns applet, select the campaign to delete from the Genesys environment.
- **3.** Delete the campaign from the applet.

This removes both the Siebel campaign and its corresponding Genesys Campaign, Calling List, and Table Access objects provided that the Genesys Campaign Export position was originally associated with the Siebel Campaign.

If you delete just the Genesys Campaign Export Position you will not be deleting the corresponding Genesys Campaign, Calling List, and Table Access objects. You must delete the entire Siebel Campaign to delete the Genesys Campaign, Calling List, and Table Access objects.

Deleting the Genesys Campaign Export Position from the Team members of a campaign means that this campaign is not included in the Synchronization process any more. Thus, if you delete a campaign after deleting the position, the deletion of the campaign will not have any effect in the Synchronization process.

# Time Zones

You have to synchronize the names of Time Zones in Genesys and Siebel environments. This means that you must make the Time Zone names used in your Genesys environment match those in your Siebel environment. When you are finished, all Time Zones used in reference to contacts or prospects in your Siebel environment must be present in Genesys. For more information, see the *G*plus *Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide*.

**Note:** If Time Zones have been imported in the Genesys Environment while the Campaign Synchronization component was running (after the deployment), this component must be restarted to accept these changes.

# **Calling List Management**

The *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM Campaign Synchronization Component provides server-side integration that synchronizes Genesys OCS with Siebel Marketing Administration and calling list management actions.

Using the desktop interface, the supervisor and agents enter campaign definition data. The data is automatically imported into the Genesys

Configuration database and is then accessible through the Genesys Configuration Management environment (assuming that the proper associations have been made):

Calling Lists > Campaigns > Agent Groups

Siebel contacts/prospects in defined callings lists are also automatically made available to Genesys OCS for loading and running in their associated campaigns.

The Genesys Outbound Contact Manager application provides execution control of the campaigns that were defined in Siebel.

**Note:** Genesys Outbound Contact does not support dialing phone numbers with extensions. Therefore, such phone numbers should not be used in Siebel campaigns that are exported to Genesys using the *Gplus* Adapter for Siebel CRM Campaign Synchronization Component.

# **Regular and Compatibility Modes**

The *Gplus* Adapter supports the ability to import Campaigns and campaign contact records from a Siebel CRM Call Center. The import process is made possible through the use of one of two data mapping modes, Regular mode and Compatibility mode. One of these modes was selected when the Genesys *Gplus* Adapter was deployed at your organization. The Regular mode is the default mode.

As a general rule, the *Gplus* Adapter Campaign Synchronization component works in the background and requires no special handling. However, it is useful to understand how the *Gplus* Adapter maps Siebel campaigns to Genesys campaigns and how it translates the hierarchy of Siebel Contact Records to Genesys Calling Lists. This section provides detailed information that may be useful if you need to re-use a campaign or list in some way, or if you need information concerning the way a list has been maintained or used.

**Note:** In the descriptions in this section, the term "list" may refer to either a Siebel list or a Siebel segment. Properly speaking, Siebel allows users to define lists or segments, where lists are collections of individual contacts, and segments are subsets (defined by logical selection criteria) of the available population of contacts. If the distinction is necessary, the term "segment" is used.

### **Differences Between the Modes**

The crucial difference between the Regular mode and Compatibility mode lies in the way each mode processes Campaigns that have been set up with a parent-child hierarchy relationship. If you never use multiple campaigns set up with parent-child relationships to build complex campaigns, then the default mode of Campaign Synchronization, Regular mode, is probably suited for your purposes. Regular mode does not recognize or reproduce parent-child relationships among campaigns.

Figure 60 on page 117 shows how Siebel campaigns with parent-child relationships are mapped into Genesys Campaigns in Regular mode. Figure 61 shows how Siebel campaigns with parent-child relationships are mapped into Genesys Campaigns in Compatibility mode.

**Note:** In the descriptions in this section, the term "list" may refer to either a Siebel list or a Siebel segment. Properly speaking, Siebel allows users to define lists or segments, where lists are collections of individual contacts, and segments are subsets (defined by logical selection criteria) of the available population of contacts. If the distinction is necessary, the term "segment" is used.





Figure 60: Campaign Synchronization in Regular Mode, with mapping of a Siebel Parent-Child Campaign structure

Figure 60 shows that, in Regular mode, Campaign\_1, Campaign\_2, and Campaign\_3 are reproduced in Genesys, and their elements are renamed so that you can recognize them easily. The Siebel segment or list that is titled List\_A in Campaign\_1 is renamed in Genesys as List\_A(Campaign\_1). The Siebel contact records that were added directly to Siebel Campaign\_1 are put into a Genesys contact list that is simply titled "Campaign\_1."

**Note:** If the Siebel campaigns in Figure 60 were not parent and children, the Genesys side of the mapping would still be exactly the same.

In Compatibility mode, as shown in Figure 61, the same naming convention is applied to the lists, but all of the lists under the parent's hierarchy are assigned to the parent campaign. The child-campaigns are not created.



Figure 61: Campaign Mapping in Compatibility Mode, with all lists from the combined Siebel Parent-Child Campaign\_1 structure mapped just to Campaign\_1

### **Regular Mode Summary**

If you are using Regular mode, then the Campaign Synchronization component reproduces all campaigns. It does not matter if these campaigns were structured in a Parent-Child relationship in Siebel. Each campaign is treated as a separate entity, and no distinction is made between a parent and a child campaign. Thus, if a Siebel campaign was set up as a parent campaign, the *Gplus* Adapter does *not* reproduce the hierarchical structure, and the contact lists of a parent campaign's children are *not* "rolled-up" into a comprehensive parent list. Each campaign is associated with its own lists (including contacts added directly to the campaign) and no other campaign's list.

Full details about the functions and use of Campaign Synchronization in Regular mode are provided below.

### **Compatibility Mode Summary**

If you are using the Compatibility mode, then the Campaign Synchronization component reproduces the parent campaign with all contact lists from all of its child campaigns. Child campaigns are not reproduced as such, although the contact lists of each child campaign are rolled up into the parent campaign. A naming convention makes it possible to identify the title of any child campaigns that were rolled up into the parent campaign. Any contacts that were added directly to a campaign are preserved and reproduced as a list associated with that campaign.

Full details about the functions and use of Campaign Synchronization in Compatibility mode are provided below.

For information about changing the mapping mode, see the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide.

### **Regular Mode**

In the Regular mode, which is the default mapping mode, the Campaign Synchronization Component creates a Genesys Campaign object for each Siebel Campaign.

Guidelines for data mapping with the Regular mode, corresponding to three levels of organizational structure, are listed below:

### Mapping of the Siebel Campaign to the Genesys Campaign

• For each Siebel campaign (parent or child), the Campaign Synchronization Component creates a corresponding Genesys Campaign object.

### Mapping of Siebel Contact Records to Genesys Calling Lists

• For Campaign contact records that were added from Siebel Segments/Lists, corresponding Genesys calling lists are created.

• For campaign contact records that were added directly to a campaign from Siebel Contacts (without using Siebel Segments/Lists), a separate Genesys calling list is created.

### Genesys Campaign/Calling List mapping

• All Genesys calling lists that were created for a particular Siebel campaign are linked to the corresponding Genesys Campaign object.

The mapping schema for the Regular mode is illustrated in Figure 60 on page 117.

### **Use Cases for Regular Mode**

Procedure for Exporting a Siebel Campaign to Genesys in Regular Mode

Refer to the example of Campaign\_1 in Figure 60 for an illustration of this process and its results. Although the illustration in Figure 60 labels Campaign\_1 as a parent, the campaign synchronization mapping in Regular mode does not process hierarchical relationships. Synchronization results are the same, regardless of the parent or child labels or relationships.

Note that the naming convention applied in this procedure re-applies the names originally assigned to the campaign and its lists.

In Regular mode, when exporting a Siebel campaign (for example, Campaign\_1) with all its contact members to the Genesys environment, the Campaign Synchronization component performs the processes listed below.

- 1. The Campaign Synchronization component creates a Campaign object "Campaign\_1", a Calling List object "Campaign\_1", the Table Access object "Campaign\_1", and a calling list table with contacts directly associated with Campaign\_1. The component then assigns the created calling list to Campaign\_1.
- 2. For each List or Segment with name "XXX" in Campaign\_1 in Siebel, the Campaign Synchronization component creates a Calling List with name "XXX (Campaign\_1)", a Table Access object "XXX (Campaign\_1)", and a calling list table with contacts from the Siebel Segment/List. The component assigns this created calling list to Campaign\_1.
- 3. If a Genesys Campaign object with the same name as the exported Siebel campaign exists (because the campaign has previously been exported), then the Campaign Synchronization component deletes the Calling List objects, Table Access objects and calling list tables with contacts related to the Siebel Lists or Segments which are not included in the Campaign at the moment.

The scenario described above explains the fundamental interaction between Siebel and the Genesys Campaign Synchronization component as it functions in Regular mode. The Siebel user may perform many smaller and intermediate tasks, however, and these are described in Table 4, "Use Cases Supported in Regular Mode," on page 121. Several of the normal Siebel tasks (tasks that are associated with building and maintaining a campaign) also trigger additional Genesys processes, and these are also described in Table 4.

### **Synchronization Procedures and Related Processes**

Table 4 describes the use cases supported by the Campaign Synchronization Component in Regular mode. This table lists the tasks associated with campaign synchronization, explains the related synchronization processing that takes place, and mentions any conditions required for processing. When the Siebel user performs the actions in the first column, the Campaign Synchronization Component performs the corresponding actions in the third column, if the conditions in the second column are met.

Note that the presence of the Genesys Campaign Export position for a Siebel campaign signifies that the data for that Siebel campaign has been exported to Genesys and that the Siebel campaign is ready for run-time data synchronization.

Refer to Figure 60 for an illustration of the following processes and their results. Although the illustration in Figure 60 labels Campaign\_1 as a parent, the campaign synchronization mapping in Regular mode does not process hierarchical relationships. Synchronization results are the same, regardless of parent or child relationships.

Table 4: L	Jse Cases Su	pported in	<b>Regular Mode</b>
------------	--------------	------------	---------------------

What the Siebel User Does	Siebel Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does in the Genesys Environment
Create a campaign (for example, "Campaign_1").	None	None
Assign the Genesys Campaign Export position to a campaign, "Campaign_1".	The campaign "Campaign_1" has not been associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position, at this moment.	Export the campaign "Campaign_1" with all its members. (See the description above, in the section titled "Procedure for Exporting a Siebel Campaign to Genesys in Regular Mode" on page 120.)
Load the campaign, "Campaign_1" (for Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0 only).	The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	Export the campaign "Campaign_1" with all its members. (See the description above, in the section titled "Procedure for Exporting a Siebel Campaign to Genesys in Regular Mode" on page 120.)

What the Siebel User Does	Siebel Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does in the Genesys Environment
(Reserved for future use.)		
Assign a contact (named, for example, "Contact A") directly to the campaign, "Campaign_1"	The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	Add record(s) for the contact, "Contact A", to the calling list, "Campaign_1".
Update the contact "Contact A"	<ol> <li>The contact "Contact A" is assigned directly to the campaign "Campaign_1"</li> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Update record(s) for "Contact A" in the calling list "Campaign_1".
Delete the contact Contact A from the campaign Campaign_1	<ol> <li>Contact A is assigned directly to the campaign "Campaign_1";</li> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Delete the record(s) for "Contact A" from the calling list "Campaign_1".
Assign the segment/list "List A" to the campaign "Campaign_1"	The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	For Siebel 7.5.3: Create the calling list ("List A (Campaign_1)") the Table Access object "List A (Campaign_1)" and a calling list table with contacts from the Siebel segment/list "List A" and assign the created calling list to the campaign "Campaign_1". For Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0: No actions until campaign reload.

### Table 4: Use Cases Supported in Regular Mode (Continued)

What the Siebel User Does	Siebel Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does in the Genesys Environment
Update the contact (Contact B)	<ol> <li>Contact B is assigned to the segment/list "List A"</li> <li>The segment/list "List A" is assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1"</li> <li>The contact is a member of the campaign "Campaign_1" and Campaign_1 is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position</li> <li>Either Phone field or Do Not Call field has been updated.</li> </ol>	For Siebel 7.5.3: Update the record(s) for Contact B in the calling list "List A(Campaign_1)". For Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0: No actions until campaign reload.
Assign the contact (Contact C) to the segment/list "List A"	<ol> <li>The segment/list "List A" is assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1";</li> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Nothing. Note: Siebel do not add contacts to campaign members while adding a contact to a list, though the list has been added to the campaign.
Update the contact (Contact C)	The same as in the case "i", but the contact is not a member of the campaign "Campaign_1".	Nothing.
Delete the contact (Contact C) from the segment/list "List A"	The same as in the case "k".	Nothing.
Delete the segment/list "List A" from the campaign, Campaign_1	The campaign Campaign_1is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	For Siebel 7.5.3: Delete the calling list, "List A (Campaign_1)", the Table Access object, "List A (Campaign_1)", and delete the calling list table with contacts. For Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0: No actions until campaign reload.

### Table 4: Use Cases Supported in Regular Mode (Continued)

What the Siebel User Does	Siebel Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does in the Genesys Environment
Delete the Genesys Campaign Export position from the campaign "Campaign_1"	None	Nothing. Note: The synchronization will not continue after the Genesys Campaign Export position is deleted.
Delete the campaign "Campaign_1"	The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	Delete the Campaign object, the Calling Lists objects assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1", the associated Table Access objects, and delete the calling list tables with contacts.

### Table 4: Use Cases Supported in Regular Mode (Continued)

### **Compatibility Mode**

In the Compatibility mode, for a Siebel campaign tree consisting of parent and child campaigns, the Campaign Synchronization Component creates a single Genesys Campaign object corresponding to the top-level Siebel Parent campaign.

The data mapping scenarios for the Compatibility mode are described below:

### Mapping of a Siebel Campaign to a Genesys Campaign

- In the Compatibility mode, the Campaign Synchronization Component considers any Siebel campaign to be a parent unless the Parent Campaign Field for the campaign is not empty, in which case the campaign is considered to be a child.
- For each Siebel parent campaign, the Campaign Synchronization Component creates a corresponding Genesys Campaign object.
- For Siebel child campaigns, a corresponding Genesys Campaign object is not be created.

### Mapping of Siebel Contact records to Genesys Calling Lists

- For campaign contact records that were added from Siebel Lists (that is, segments or lists), corresponding Genesys calling lists are created.
- For campaign contact records that were added directly to a campaign from Siebel Contacts (without using Siebel segments or lists), a separate Genesys calling list is created.

### Genesys Campaign/Calling List Mapping

• All Genesys calling lists created for a particular Siebel parent campaign and its Siebel child campaigns are linked to the corresponding Genesys Campaign object.

Figure 61 on page 118 illustrates the mapping schema for Compatibility mode.

### **Use Cases for Compatibility Mode**

You can assign the Genesys Campaign Export position either to a Siebel Parent Campaign or to one of its Children. The result of this action is that the Campaign Synchronization Component assigns the position to the parent and all its children automatically and exports this parent-child campaign structure to Genesys for processing.

**Note:** As explained elsewhere in this chapter, Genesys does not re-create the parent-child campaign structure. Specifically, Genesys does not re-create the child-campaigns. Rather, it re-creates the lists (including segments and lists) contained in Siebel child campaigns, links these lists to the parent campaign (which is re-created in Genesys), and names the re-created lists so that their associations with specific Siebel child-campaigns is easy to trace.

Procedure for Exporting a Siebel Campaign to Genesys in Compatibility Mode

Refer to the example of Campaign\_1 in Figure 61 on page 118 for an illustration of this process and its results. Although the illustration in Figure 61 labels Campaign\_1 as a parent and Campaign\_2 and Campaign\_3 as children, the campaign synchronization mapping in Compatibility mode does not recreate child campaigns and so does not strictly replicate all the campaigns and their hierarchical relationships.

In Compatibility mode, when exporting a Siebel campaign (for example, Campaign\_1) with all its contact members to the Genesys environment, the Campaign Synchronization component performs the processes listed below. Note that the naming convention applied in this procedure re-applies the names originally assigned to the campaign and its lists.

In Compatibility mode, when exporting the entire parent-child campaign hierarchy with all its members (refer to the parent campaign called "Campaign\_1" in Figure 61) to the Genesys environment, the Campaign Synchronization Component takes these actions:

- **1.** If the parent campaign "Campaign\_1" in Siebel does not have the Genesys Campaign Export position, then:
  - Create the campaign object "Campaign\_1"

- Create a Calling List object "Campaign\_1", a Table Access object "Campaign\_1", and a calling list table with contacts that are directly associated with the campaign "Campaign\_1" in Siebel and assign the created calling list to the campaign "Campaign\_1"
- For each Siebel segment or list of the parent campaign "Campaign\_1", create the Calling List object with the name "XXX (Campaign\_1)", the Table Access object, "XXX (Campaign\_1)", and a calling list table with the contacts from the Siebel segment/list, and assign the created calling list to the campaign, "Campaign\_1", where "XXX" stands for the Siebel segment or list name.
- **2.** For each child campaign of campaign "Campaign\_1" in Siebel that does not have the Genesys Campaign Export position:
  - Create the Calling List object "YYY", the Table Access object "YYY", and a calling list table with contacts that are directly associated with the Child Campaign, and assign the created Calling List to the campaign "Campaign\_1" where "YYY" stands for the Siebel Child campaign name
  - For each Siebel segment/list of the child campaign, create the Calling List "XXX (YYY)", the Table Access object, "XXX (YYY)", and a calling list table with contacts from the Siebel segment/list and assign the created calling list to the campaign "Campaign\_1" where "XXX" stands for the Siebel segment or list name, and "YYY" stands for the Siebel Child campaign name
- **3.** For each child campaign of the campaign "Campaign\_1" in Siebel that has the Genesys Campaign Export position:
  - Assign the calling list "YYY" to the campaign "Campaign\_1" where "YYY" stands for the Siebel Child campaign name
  - For each Siebel segment or list of the child campaign, assign the calling list "XXX (YYY)" to the campaign "Campaign\_1" where "XXX" stands for the Siebel segment or list name, and "YYY" stands for the Siebel Child campaign name
  - Delete the campaign "YYY", where "YYY" stands for the Siebel Child campaign name
- 4. If a Genesys Campaign object with the same name as the exported Siebel parent campaign exists (because the campaign has previously been exported), then the Campaign Synchronization component deletes the Calling List objects, Table Access objects and calling list tables with contacts related to the Siebel Lists or Segments which are not included in the Campaign hierarchy at the moment. In some cases, lists which were previously exported to Genesys have subsequently been deleted from Siebel, and it is necessary to manually remove these out-of-date lists.
- **5.** In Siebel environment, assign the Genesys Campaign Export position to the campaign "Campaign\_1" and all of its children.

The presence of the **Genesys Campaign Export position** for a Siebel campaign (either a parent or a child) signifies that the data for that Siebel campaign has been exported to Genesys and that the Siebel campaign is ready for run-time data synchronization.

Table 5 on page 127 describes use cases supported by the Campaign Synchronization Component in the Compatibility mode. When the Siebel Campaign Administrator performs the actions in the first column, the Campaign Synchronization Component performs the corresponding actions in the third column, if the respective condition(s) from the second column are met. Refer to Figure 61 on page 118 for an illustration of these processes and their results.

What the Siebel Campaign Administrator Does	Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does
Create the parent campaign, "Campaign_1".	None	None
Assign the Genesys Campaign Export position to the parent campaign, "Campaign_1" or any child campaign of the campaign, "Campaign_1".	The Parent Campaign Field for the campaign, "Campaign_1" is empty and the campaign "Campaign_1" has not been associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	Export the entire parent-child campaign hierarchy (parent campaign "Campaign_1") with all its members. (See the description above, in the section titled "Procedure for Exporting a Siebel Campaign to Genesys in Compatibility Mode" on page 125.)
Load either the parent campaign "Campaign_1" or any child campaign of it. (for Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0 only).	The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	Export the entire parent-child campaign hierarchy (parent campaign "Campaign_1") with all its members. (See the description above, in the section titled "Procedure for Exporting a Siebel Campaign to Genesys in Compatibility Mode" on page 125.)
Assign the contact (Contact A) directly to the campaign, Campaign_1	The campaign, "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	Add record(s) for the contact, "Contact A," to the calling list, "Campaign_1."
Update the contact "Contact A"	<ol> <li>The contact "Contact A" is assigned directly to the campaign "Campaign_1".</li> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Update the record(s) for the contact "Contact A" in the calling list "Campaign_1".

### Table 5: Use Cases Supported in the Compatibility Mode

What the Siebel Campaign Administrator Does	Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does
Delete the contact "Contact A" from the campaign "Campaign_1"	<ol> <li>The contact "Contact A" is assigned directly to the campaign "Campaign_1" directly;</li> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Delete the record(s) for the contact "Contact A" from calling list "Campaign_1".
Assign the segment/list "List A" to the campaign "Campaign_1"	<ol> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> <li>The Parent Campaign Field for the campaign "Campaign_1" is empty.</li> </ol>	For Siebel 7.5.3: Create the calling list "List A (Campaign_1)", the Table Access object, "List A (Campaign_1)", and a calling list table with contacts from the Siebel segment/list, List A and assign the created calling list to the campaign "Campaign_1". For Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0: No actions until campaign reload.
Update the contact "Contact B"	<ol> <li>The contact "Contact B" is assigned to the segment/list "List A";</li> <li>The segment/list "List A" is assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1";</li> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Update the record(s) for the contact "Contact B" in the calling list, "List A (Campaign_1)".
Assign the contact "Contact C" to the segment/list "List A"	<ol> <li>The segment/list "List A" is assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1";</li> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Nothing. Note: Though the segment/list "List A" is assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1", Siebel will not add the contact "Contact C" to the campaign "Campaign_1".

What the Siebel Campaign Administrator Does	Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does
Update the contact "Contact C"	1. The contact "Contact C" is assigned to the segment/list "List A";	Nothing.
	<ol> <li>The segment/list "List A" is assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1";</li> </ol>	
	3. The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	
Delete the contact "Contact C" from the segment/list "List A"	1. The contact "Contact C" is assigned to the segment/list "List A";	Nothing.
	<ol> <li>The segment/list "List A" is assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1";</li> </ol>	
	3. The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	
Delete the segment/list "List A" from the campaign "Campaign_1"	<ol> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position;</li> <li>The Parent Campaign Field for the campaign "Campaign_1" is empty.</li> </ol>	Delete the calling list "List A (Campaign_1)", the Table Access object "List A (Campaign_1)" and the calling list table with contacts.
Create the campaign "Child"	None.	Nothing.

d)
(

What the Siebel Campaign Administrator Does	Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does
Set the Parent Campaign Field of the campaign "Child" to "Campaign_1"	<ol> <li>The campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position;</li> <li>The campaign "Child" is not associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position</li> </ol>	1. Create the calling list "Child", the Table Access object "Child", and a calling list table with contacts directly associated with the campaign "Child" in Siebel and assign the created calling list to the parent campaign "Campaign_1";
		2. For each segment/list in the campaign "Child" in Siebel, create the calling list "XXX (Child)", the Table Access object "XXX (Child)", and a calling list table with the contacts from the Siebel segment/list and assign the created calling list to the parent campaign, "Campaign_1", where XXX stands for the Siebel Segment/list name;
		3. In Siebel, assign the Genesys Campaign Export position to the campaign "Child".
Set the Parent Campaign Field of the campaign "Child" to Campaign_1	<ol> <li>The parent campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position;</li> <li>The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Assign the calling list "Child" to the parent campaign "Campaign_1";</li> <li>For each segment/list in the campaign "Child" in Siebel, assign the calling list "XXX (Child)" to the parent campaign "Campaign_1", where XXX stands for the Siebel Segment/list name;</li> <li>Delete the campaign "Child".</li> </ol>
Set the Parent Campaign Field of the campaign "Child" to "Campaign_1"	<ol> <li>The parent campaign         "Campaign_1" is not associated         with the Genesys Campaign Export         position;</li> <li>The campaign "Child" is         associated with the Genesys         Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Export the entire parent-child campaign hierarchy (parent campaign "Campaign_1") with all its members. (See the description above, in the section titled "Procedure for Exporting a Siebel Campaign to Genesys in Compatibility Mode" on page 125.)
Assign the contact "Contact D" directly to the campaign "Child"	1. The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	Add the record(s) for the contact "Contact D" to the calling list "Child".

What the Siebel Campaign Administrator Does	Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does
Update the contact "Contact D"	1. The contact "Contact D" is assigned directly to the campaign "Child";	Update the record(s) for the contact "Contact D" in the calling list "Child".
	2. The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	
Delete the contact "Contact D" for the campaign "Child"	<ol> <li>The contact "Contact D" is assigned to the campaign "Child" directly;</li> <li>The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Delete the record(s) for the contact "Contact D" from the calling list "Child".
Assign the segment/list "List B" to the campaign	<ol> <li>The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position;</li> <li>The Parent Campaign Field of the campaign "Child" is set to Campaign_1.</li> </ol>	For Siebel 7.5.3: Create the calling list, "List B (Child)", the Table Access object, "List B (Child)", and a calling list table with contacts from the Siebel Segment/list "List B", and assign the created calling list to the campaign "Campaign_1". For Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0: No actions until campaign reload.
Assign the contact "Contact E" to the segment/list "List B"	<ol> <li>The segment/list "List B" is assigned to the campaign "Child";</li> <li>The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	None Note: Though segment/list "List B" is assigned to the campaign "Child", Siebel will not add the contact "Contact E" to the campaign "Child".
Update the contact "Contact E"	1. The contact "Contact E" is assigned to the segment/list "List B";	Nothing.
	<ol> <li>2. The segment/list "List B" is assigned to the campaign "Child";</li> <li>3. The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys</li> </ol>	
	Campaign Export position.	

Table 5: Use Cases Supported in the Compatibility I	Mode (Continued)
---	------------------

What the Siebel Campaign Administrator Does	Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does
Delete the contact "Contact E" from the segment/list "List B"	<ol> <li>The contact "Contact E" is assigned to the segment/list "List B";</li> <li>The segment/list "List B" is assigned to the campaign "Child";</li> <li>The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	Nothing.
Delete the segment/list "List B" from the campaign "Child"	<ol> <li>The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position;</li> <li>The Parent Campaign Field of the campaign "Child" is set to "Campaign_1".</li> </ol>	For Siebel 7.5.3: Delete the calling list "List B (Child)", the Table Access "List B", and delete the calling list table with contacts. For Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0: No actions until Campaign reload.
Set the Parent Campaign Field of the campaign "Child" to empty	<ol> <li>The Parent Campaign Field of the campaign "Child" is set to "Campaign_1";</li> <li>The parent campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position;</li> <li>The campaign "Child" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.</li> </ol>	<ol> <li>Create the campaign "Child";</li> <li>Delete the calling list "Child" from the parent campaign "Campaign_1";</li> <li>Assign the calling list "Child" to the campaign "Child";</li> <li>For each segment/list in the campaign "Child" in Siebel, delete the calling list "XXX (Child)" from the parent campaign "Campaign_1" where "XXX" stands for the Siebel Segment/list name;</li> <li>For each segment/list in the campaign "Child" in Siebel, assign the Calling List "XXX (Child)" to the campaign "Child" where "XXX" stands for the Siebel Segment/list name.</li> </ol>

What the Siebel Campaign Administrator Does	Condition(s)	What the Campaign Synchronization Component Does
Delete the Genesys Campaign Export position from the campaign "Parent B"	None.	Nothing. Note: The synchronization will not continue after the Genesys Campaign Export position is deleted.
Delete the parent campaign "Campaign_1"	The parent campaign "Campaign_1" is associated with the Genesys Campaign Export position.	<ol> <li>Delete all calling lists objects assigned to the campaign "Campaign_1" the associated Table Access objects, and delete the calling list tables with contacts;</li> <li>Delete the campaign "Campaign_1".</li> </ol>

# Campaign Management Notes for Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0 Users

Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0 implemented a new approach for campaign management processes such as "Load Campaign" and "Launch Campaign". In Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0, the segment/list members, such as contacts or prospects, become available as campaign members for Siebel Call Center agents only after the campaign was loaded *and* launched. In previous versions, contacts and prospects from Siebel lists become available as campaign members immediately after the lists were assigned to the campaign.

In Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0, the Campaign Synchronization component exports campaign members to Genesys on the "Load Campaign" event, when they are actually added to the campaign, instead of on the "Assign List" event, as was the case in the previous Siebel versions.

It is important to understand that, if you have reloaded the campaign but have not launched it yet, then there may be a difference between what Siebel Call Center agents can see in their Campaign members list and what was actually exported to Genesys environment. To avoid such differences, do not re-load a campaign on the Siebel side while it is being executed by Genesys Outbound Contact, and while agents are working in that campaign. If such a re-load is required, follow these steps to synchronize Siebel and Genesys environments:

- 1. Stop and unload the campaign on the Genesys side.
- 2. Load and launch the campaign on the Siebel side.
- 3. Load and start campaign on Genesys side.

- **Note:** If you reload a campaign two or more times, then the Adapter will synchronize members of this campaign based on the rule that only members who are contained in the last campaign load are considered as active members. This means that contacts/prospects that were not included in the last campaign load will be deleted from Genesys Campaign lists. With regard to contacts/prospects who were added directly to the campaign, this also means that you have to add them to the campaign after the last campaign load.
- **Note:** In Siebel 7.7/7.8/8.0, synchronization of the removal of a single List (the last) from the Campaign can be performed only by re-exporting this Campaign, because the "Load Campaign" command is not available after the last list has been removed.

# **Mapping Calling Lists**

Regardless of the campaign mapping mode you use, when the same Siebel List (that, the same segment or list) is used in two separate Siebel campaigns, the Campaign Synchronization Component creates two separate Genesys calling lists.

The Siebel environment does not place any restrictions on the number of times a contact or prospect can be included in a list or a campaign or its child campaigns. As a result, if a contact or prospect is included more than once in an exported Siebel list or campaign, the Genesys definition for the respective calling list or campaign also includes the contact or prospect information more than once.

For example, in the Campaign Synchronization Compatibility mapping mode, if the same Siebel list is assigned to an exported Siebel campaign and one of its child campaigns, the same contact records will be included twice in the Genesys campaign definition. This situation is illustrated in Figure 62 on page 135 in which the contact records from List B in Siebel will be stored in





Calling List COB and Calling List C1B in Genesys and both lists are included in Campaign 0.

Figure 62: Duplication of Contact Records





Chapter

# 5 Troubleshooting

This chapter provides some solutions to common problems.

# **Overview**

Use Table 6 on page 138 to find solutions to some common problems.

Problem Description	Solution
The G <i>plus</i> Adapter for Siebel CRM Configuration Synchronization Component does not create some of the objects subject to synchronization in Configuration Layer when information is imported from the Siebel environment.	There might be conflicts between existing configuration data and data imported by <i>Gplus</i> Adapter for Siebel CRM Configuration Synchronization Component from Siebel to Genesys. For example, if an agent with the user name user 1 is imported by the Configuration Synchronization Component and there is a person (not an agent) with the same user name in Configuration Manager, the Configuration Synchronization Component will not be able to successfully complete the import function and will produce an error message in its log. Check the log of the Configuration Synchronization Component for error messages and use Configuration Manager to correct any conflicts. Then import the affected objects.
After making changes to objects imported by G <i>plus</i> Adapter for Siebel CRM Configuration Synchronization Component into Configuration Layer and then importing the affected objects from Siebel once again, there are discrepancies between configuration data in Siebel and Genesys environments.	Any voluntary changes made to the data in Configuration Manager where Gplus Adapter for Siebel CRM Configuration Synchronization Component stores agent data may cause data synchronization scenarios to fail. This may cause discrepancies between configuration data in Siebel and Genesys applications. For example, if an agent with user name user1, which was previously imported by the Configuration Synchronization Component, is removed from Configuration Manager and a person (not an agent) with the same user name is created manually in Configuration Manager, if agent user1 is imported from Siebel again, the Configuration Synchronization Component will fail, producing an error message in its log. Check the log of the Configuration Synchronization Component for error messages and use Configuration Manager to correct any conflicts. Then import the affected objects again.
The error message Cannot connect to the server displays in the Siebel Call Center.	Check that G <i>plus</i> Adapter for Siebel CRM Configuration Synchronization Component is running. Normally, it should be running whenever agent data is updated within Siebel. If the Configuration Synchronization Component is running and you still get this error, there might be network problems preventing Siebel Server from successfully connecting to the Configuration Synchronization Component. To solve the problem, restore network connectivity.
Problem: Does not reconnect to T- server.	Change ADDP timeout parameter.

### Table 6: Problems and Solutions (Continued)

Problem Description	Solution
Upon accepting Genesys E-mail, instead of E-mail view, Siebel displays an Error Message view with fhe tollowing error message: Cannot connect to the server (SBL-EAI-04115)	Check that the UCS Gateway is running, and that the corresponding outbound web service wass imported and contains the correct URL pointing to the UCS Gateway.
When browsing the Standard Response Library, Siebel shows "Applet: Genesys CategoryStructureDataEx(MCR) does not have the Base template file specified.(SBL- UIF-00266)" error message.	Using Siebel Tools, check for the existence of the "Applet Form Grid Layout" template. Create it manually if needed (see the Gplus Adapter 7.5 for Siebel CRM Deployment Guide for details).
After creation of a new Siebel configuration with both Gplus Voice and Gplus OpenMedia profiles, or any changes made in either profile, agent login to the Siebel Server displays an Error Message: "Unable to create a Driver object from driver GenCommDrv with Media-Type- String GPlus CTI Driver(SBL- CSR-00500)."	Check that both profiles, (G <i>plus</i> Voice and G <i>plus</i> OpenMedia) in the Siebel configuration are configured in accordance with the Deployment Guide. If the configuration defines both profiles, but one of these profiles has been configured with errors, then the driver instances for both G <i>plus</i> Voice and G <i>plus</i> OpenMedia are not created and Siebel displays this error.
If an agent logs in to Siebel when the <i>Gplus</i> Communication Server has not yet been started, the Siebel Toolbar is inaccessible for this agent.	Log out of Siebel and make sure that the G <i>plus</i> Communication Server is started, then log in to Siebel again.
For e-mail transfer in Siebel 7.5.3: Siebel 7.5.3 does not automatically save the current applet when the Communication toolbar is selected. This may cause undefined behavior. For a detailed explanation, please refer to Oracle Service Request #: 38-2989109267 on the Oracle support site.	This issue is resolved in later (post-7.5.3) versions of Siebel. For a workaround for Siebel 7.5.3 please refer to Oracle Service Request #: 38-2989109267 on the Oracle support site.





# Index

### A

agent											
Place			÷								. 88

### В

batch					
campaign synchronization.					106
batch option					
campaign synchronization.		÷			106
brackets					
angle					. 10

# С

call notification from Genesys23call results54Call Results Synchronization32call status51calling list management114calling lists115campaign export position121
campaign management
Campaign Synchronization mapping conventions
Campaign Synchronization Component . 30, 107 conditions and requirements for using 108 starting
campaign synchronization process objects . 112 clean
campaign synchronization
campaign synchronization
Communications Commands

Communications Toolbar
Compatibility mode
compatibility mode
campaign synchronization
components
Campaign Synchronization 19, 107
Configuration Synchronization
Media Routing
Multimedia
Outbound Campaign
Voice
Configuration Server
backup
primary
configuration synchronization
Configuration Synchronization Component . 95,
106
contact center
See call center or Siebel Call Center 18

### D

Database Access Point assignment 31, 33	3
database synchronization	)
desktop interfaces	
administration	2
commands	)
Siebel eMail routing	3
document	
version number	9
document errors	
commenting on	)

### Ε

eMail editor	
Siebel	26, 101
e-mail routing	101
event handlers	26, 101
exporting Siebel campaigns to Genesys.	108

## F

fail-over servers	15
folder assignments, User IDs	32
Framework	15
functionality.	15

# G

Genesys				
Framework	÷		2	.15
Multimedia	÷		2	. 27
Outbound Contact Manager	÷			115
Universal Queue.				
Genesys Campaign Export position				110

# Н

hot keys	÷												÷							20
----------	---	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	---	--	--	--	--	--	--	----

### I

importing Siebel 3 108	Sie	eb	e	l c	a	m	ра	ig	n	s t	0	G	er	ne	sy	S.
interaction types introduction																

### L

list	
generic term for list or segment	116
List import	31
listener services	30

### Μ

Multimedia e-mails . multi-site	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	27
support														. 15
switch capability .					÷					÷				.15

### Ν

Not Ready button											41
notification, phone call											
number of attempts	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷	÷		÷	51

### 0

# 

Call Result commands	5
Outbound Contact Server (OCS)	5
outcome	

### Ρ

parent-child relationships among campaigns	116
performance testing	.15
phone call notification	.23
phone numbers with extensions	115
Place	.88

### R

ready button
ready for all channels
real-time configuration synchronization
Real-time data synchronization
regular mode
campaign synchronization
requirements
campaign synchronization 108
reschedule time

### S

screen pops
segment
Siebel
Call Center
Communication Commands
Communications Toolbar 17, 19, 26
eBusiness Applications
eMail Response
eMail routing
eMarketing
Smart Answer
Standard Response Library
switching platforms
symbols
<>
synchronization of databases
system loads

### Т

Teleset definition	.88
time zone support	.18
time zones	
synchronization, required for campaign	
synchronization	114
Troubleshooting	137
typographical styles	. 9



# U

Universal Queue	26, 101
User IDs	
access point assignment	

### V

version numbering	
document	9
view buttons	21

### W

Warm standby mode		34
web browser		
web client		18

## Ζ

zero footprint																18
----------------	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	--	----

Index

